

**2013 IAPD/IPRA  
Soaring to New Heights Conference  
January 24-26, 2013  
Hyatt Regency, Chicago**

*Your Local Government  
Attorneys*

MAIN OFFICE:  
140 S. DEARBORN STREET, 6TH FL.  
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60603

PHONE: 312-782-7606  
FAX: 312-782-0943  
WWW.ANCELGLINK.COM

OTHER OFFICE LOCATIONS:  
175 E. HAWTHORN PARKWAY  
VERNON HILLS, ILLINOIS 60061  
(847) 247-7400

4 E. TERRA COTTA AVENUE  
CRYSTAL LAKE, ILLINOIS 60014  
(815) 744-8980

1979 N. MILL STREET, SUITE 207  
NAPERVILLE, IL 60563  
(630) 596-4610

207 NORTH JEFFERSON, SUITE 402  
BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS 61701  
(309) 828-1990

**FRIDAY, JANUARY 25, 2013**

**8:00 A.M. TO 9:15 A.M.**

**SESSION #127**

---

**KEEPING COMMISSIONERS  
AND DIRECTORS CURRENT  
WITH CHANGING LAWS**

---

**PRESENTER:**

**ROBERT K. BUSH, ESQ.**

**Ancel  
Glink**

DIAMOND BUSH  
DiCIANNI  
& KRAFTHEFER

AN ACT concerning local government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Park District Code is amended by changing Sections 5-1 and 5-2 as follows:

(70 ILCS 1205/5-1) (from Ch. 105, par. 5-1)

Sec. 5-1. Each Park District has the power to levy and collect taxes on all the taxable property in the district for all corporate purposes. The commissioners may accumulate funds for the purposes of building repairs and improvements and may annually levy taxes for such purposes in excess of current requirements for its other purposes but subject to the tax rate limitation as herein provided.

All general taxes proposed by the board to be levied upon the taxable property within the district shall be levied by ordinance. A certified copy of such levy ordinance shall be filed with the county clerk of the county in which the same is to be collected not later than the last Tuesday in December in each year. The county clerk shall extend such tax; provided, the aggregate amount of taxes levied for any one year, exclusive of the amount levied for the payment of the principal and interest on bonded indebtedness of the district and taxes authorized by special referenda, shall not exceed, except as

otherwise provided in this Section, the rate of .10%, or the rate limitation in effect on July 1, 1967, whichever is greater, of the value, as equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, a park district board of a park district lying wholly within one county is authorized to increase property taxes under this Section for corporate purposes for any one year so long as the increase is offset by a like property tax levy reduction in one or more of the park district's funds. At the time that such park district files its levy with the county clerk, it shall also certify to the county clerk that the park district has complied with and is authorized to act under this Section 5-1 of the Park District Code. In no instance shall the increase either exceed or result in a reduction to the extension limitation to which any park district is subject under Section 18-195 of the Property Tax Code.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Section to the contrary, if a park district is subject to Section 18-195 of the Property Tax Code and does not levy the tax authorized by Section 5-3, then it may increase the property tax levy under this Section for corporate purposes to a total rate not to exceed the total of rates authorized by this Section and Section 5-3 as long as the increase is offset by a like property tax levy reduction in one or more of the park district's funds. In no instance shall the increase for

corporate purposes cause the park district to exceed the limiting rate that the park district is subject to under Section 18-195 of the Property Tax Code.

Any funds on hand at the end of the fiscal year that are not pledged for or allocated to a particular purpose may, by action of the board of commissioners, be transferred to a capital improvement fund and accumulated therein, but the total amount accumulated in the fund may not exceed 1.5% of the aggregate assessed valuation of all taxable property in the park district.

The foregoing limitations upon tax rates may be decreased under the referendum provisions of the General Revenue Law of the State of Illinois.

(Source: P.A. 95-331, eff. 8-21-07.)

(70 ILCS 1205/5-2) (from Ch. 105, par. 5-2)

Sec. 5-2. Any park district may levy and collect annually, a tax of not to exceed .12% of the value, as equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue, of all taxable property in such district for the purpose of planning, establishing and maintaining recreational programs, such programs to include playgrounds, community and recreational centers, which tax shall be levied and collected in like manner as the general taxes for such district. Such tax shall be in addition to all other taxes authorized by law to be levied and collected in such district and shall not be included within any limitation

of rate contained in this Code or any other law, but shall be excluded therefrom and be in addition thereto and in excess thereof.

The proceeds of the tax authorized by this Section shall be paid to the treasurer of such district and kept in a fund to be known as the recreational program fund. Such fund shall be used for the planning, establishing and maintaining recreational programs carried on by such district.

No such tax in excess of .075% shall be levied in any such district, until the question of levying such tax has first been submitted to the voters of such district at an election held in such district and has been approved by a majority of such voters voting thereon. The board shall certify such proposition to the proper election officials, who shall submit such proposition to the voters of the district regardless of whether or not a petition, signed by electors of the district, requesting the submission thereof has been filed with the board. Notice of such referendum shall be given and such referendum shall be conducted in the manner provided by the general election law.

The proposition shall be in substantially the following form:

-----  
Shall the.... Park District  
be authorized and empowered to  
levy and collect a tax of.... YES

per cent for the purpose of  
recreational programs (and,  
optionally, insert specific -----  
purposes or programs as  
determined by the park district  
board) as provided in Section  
5-2 of "The Park District Code"?

NO

-----  
If a majority of the voters of such district voting thereon shall vote for the levy and collection of the tax, such district is authorized and empowered to levy and collect such tax annually thereafter. Any tax previously authorized by referendum for recreation and community centers under "An Act to amend Section 8 of An Act to provide for the creation of Pleasure Driveway and Park Districts, approved June 19, 1893, as amended and to add Sections 8a, 8b, 8c, and 8d thereto", approved February 27, 1935, as amended, shall continue to be levied and shall be treated as having been authorized under this Section.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Section to the contrary, if a park district is subject to Section 18-195 of the Property Tax Code and does not levy the tax authorized by Section 5-3a, then it may increase the property tax levy under this Section for the purpose of planning, establishing, and maintaining recreational programs carried on by the district to a total rate not to exceed the total of rates authorized by

Public Act 097-0974

HB0587 Enrolled

LRB097 03414 HLH 43451 b

this Section and Section 5-3a as long as the increase is offset by a like property tax levy reduction in one or more of the park district's funds. In no instance shall the increase for the purpose of planning, establishing, and maintaining recreation programs cause the park district to exceed the limiting rate that the park district is subject to under Section 18-195 of the Property Tax Code.

The foregoing limitations upon tax rates may be decreased under the referendum provisions of the General Revenue Law of the State of Illinois.

(Source: P.A. 93-434, eff. 8-5-03.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

Public Act 097-0758

HB4562 Enrolled

LRB097 16823 KMW 62005 b

AN ACT concerning local government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Park District Code is amended by changing  
Section 4-8 as follows:

(70 ILCS 1205/4-8) (from Ch. 105, par. 4-8)

Sec. 4-8. Except where the president of the district is  
elected by direct vote of the electors, the board of each park  
district shall elect from their number a president and all  
districts shall elect a vice-president, who shall hold their  
respective offices for one year, or until their successors  
shall be elected. The Board shall prescribe their powers and  
duties not inconsistent with the provisions of this code.

The Board shall also appoint a secretary and a treasurer,  
prescribe their duties, and term of office and require such  
bonds as the board deems necessary. The secretary and treasurer  
need not be members of the board, in which case the Board may  
fix their compensation; and both offices may be held by the  
same person. The secretary shall have power to administer oaths  
and affirmations.

The Board may appoint an assistant secretary and an  
assistant treasurer. If the secretary or treasurer are unable  
to perform the duties of their respective offices, then the



Public Act 097-0758

HB4562 Enrolled

LRB097 16823 KMW 62005 b

assistant secretary or assistant treasurer shall perform the duties of that office, respectively, as prescribed by the Board. The assistant secretary and assistant treasurer need not be members of the Board.

(Source: Laws 1951, p. 113.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

**Information maintained by the Legislative Reference Bureau**

Updating the database of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) is an ongoing process. Recent laws may not yet be included in the ILCS database, but they are found on this site as Public Acts soon after they become law. For information concerning the relationship between statutes and Public Acts, refer to the Guide.

Because the statute database is maintained primarily for legislative drafting purposes, statutory changes are sometimes included in the statute database before they take effect. If the source note at the end of a Section of the statutes includes a Public Act that has not yet taken effect, the version of the law that is currently in effect may have already been removed from the database and you should refer to that Public Act to see the changes made to the current law.

**LOCAL GOVERNMENT**  
**(50 ILCS 135/) Local Governmental Employees Political Rights Act.**

(50 ILCS 135/1) (from Ch. 85, par. 7601)

Sec. 1. Short title. This Act may be cited as the Local Governmental Employees Political Rights Act.  
(Source: P.A. 87-385.)

(50 ILCS 135/5) (from Ch. 85, par. 7605)

Sec. 5. Definition; political rights. "Political rights" include, without limitation, the following political activities: to petition, to make public speeches, to campaign for or against political candidates, to speak out on questions of public policy, to distribute political literature, to make campaign contributions, and to seek public office.  
(Source: P.A. 87-385.)

(50 ILCS 135/10) (from Ch. 85, par. 7610)

Sec. 10. Political rights protected.

(a) No unit of local government or school district may make or enforce any rule or ordinance that in any way inhibits or prohibits any of its employees from exercising the employee's political rights.

(b) No employee of a unit of local government or school district may (i) use his or her official position of employment to coerce or inhibit others in the free exercise of their political rights or (ii) engage in political activities while at work or on duty.

(Source: P.A. 87-385.)

(50 ILCS 135/12)

Sec. 12. Elective and appointed office.

(a) A member of any fire department or fire protection district may:

(1) be a candidate for elective public office and serve in that public office if elected;

(2) be appointed to any public office and serve in that public office if appointed; and

(3) as long as the member is not in uniform and not on duty, solicit votes and campaign funds and challenge voters for the public office for which the member is a candidate.

(b) A firefighter who is elected to the Illinois General Assembly shall, upon written application to the employer, be granted a leave of absence without compensation during his or her term of office.

(Source: P.A. 94-316, eff. 7-25-05; 95-142, eff. 8-13-07.)

(50 ILCS 135/15) (from Ch. 85, par. 7615)

Sec. 15. Home rule. A home rule unit may not regulate employee political rights in a manner inconsistent with this Act. This Section is a limitation under subsection (i) of Section 6 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution on the concurrent exercise by home rule units of powers and functions exercised by the State.

(Source: P.A. 87-385.)

(50 ILCS 135/105) (from Ch. 85, par. 7649)

Sec. 105. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

(Source: P.A. 87-385.)

## Public Act 097-0758

HB4562 Enrolled

LRB097 16823 KMW 62005 b

AN ACT concerning local government.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:

Section 5. The Park District Code is amended by changing  
Section 4-8 as follows:

(70 ILCS 1205/4-8) (from Ch. 105, par. 4-8)

Sec. 4-8. Except where the president of the district is elected by direct vote of the electors, the board of each park district shall elect from their number a president and all districts shall elect a vice-president, who shall hold their respective offices for one year, or until their successors shall be elected. The Board shall prescribe their powers and duties not inconsistent with the provisions of this code.

The Board shall also appoint a secretary and a treasurer, prescribe their duties, and term of office and require such bonds as the board deems necessary. The secretary and treasurer need not be members of the board, in which case the Board may fix their compensation; and both offices may be held by the same person. The secretary shall have power to administer oaths and affirmations.

The Board may appoint an assistant secretary and an assistant treasurer. If the secretary or treasurer are unable to perform the duties of their respective offices, then the assistant secretary or assistant treasurer shall perform the duties of that office, respectively, as prescribed by the Board. The assistant secretary and assistant treasurer need not be members of the Board.

(Source: Laws 1951, p. 113.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

**Effective Date: 7/6/2012**

AN ACT concerning employment.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Prevailing Wage Act is amended by changing Sections 5, 6, and 11a as follows:

(820 ILCS 130/5) (from Ch. 48, par. 39s-5)

Sec. 5. Certified payroll.

(a) ~~Any While participating on public works,~~ the contractor and each subcontractor who participates in public works shall:

(1) make and keep, for a period of not less than 3 years from the date of the last payment on a contract or subcontract for public works, records of all laborers, mechanics, and other workers employed by them on the project; the records shall include each worker's name, address, telephone number when available, social security number, classification or classifications, the hourly wages paid in each pay period, the number of hours worked each day, and the starting and ending times of work each day; and

(2) no later than the tenth day of each calendar month ~~file submit monthly, in person, by mail, or electronically~~ a certified payroll for the immediately preceding month ~~with~~ ~~to~~ the public body in charge of the project. A

certified payroll must be filed for only those calendar months during which construction on a public works project has occurred. The certified payroll shall consist of a complete copy of the records identified in paragraph (1) of this subsection (a), but may exclude the starting and ending times of work each day. The certified payroll shall be accompanied by a statement signed by the contractor or subcontractor or an officer, employee, or agent of the contractor or subcontractor which avers that: (i) he or she has examined the certified payroll records required to be submitted by the Act and such records are true and accurate; (ii) the hourly rate paid to each worker is not less than the general prevailing rate of hourly wages required by this Act; and (iii) the contractor or subcontractor is aware that filing a certified payroll that he or she knows to be false is a Class A ~~B~~ misdemeanor. A general contractor is not prohibited from relying on the certification of a lower tier subcontractor, provided the general contractor does not knowingly rely upon a subcontractor's false certification. Any contractor or subcontractor subject to this Act and any officer, employee, or agent of such contractor or subcontractor whose duty as such officer, employee, or agent it is to file such certified payroll who willfully fails to file such ~~submit~~ a certified payroll on or before the date such certified payroll is required by this paragraph to be filed

and any person who willfully or knowingly files a false certified payroll that is false as to any material fact is in violation of this Act and guilty of a Class A B misdemeanor. The public body in charge of the project shall keep the records submitted in accordance with this paragraph (2) of subsection (a) for a period of not less than 3 years from the date of the last payment for work on a contract or subcontract for public works. The records submitted in accordance with this paragraph (2) of subsection (a) shall be considered public records, except an employee's address, telephone number, and social security number, and made available in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act. The public body shall accept any reasonable submissions by the contractor that meet the requirements of this Section.

(b) Upon 7 business days' notice, the contractor and each subcontractor shall make available for inspection and copying at a location within this State during reasonable hours, the records identified in paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of this Section to the public body in charge of the project, its officers and agents, ~~and to~~ the Director of Labor and his deputies and agents, and to federal, State, or local law enforcement agencies and prosecutors. ~~Upon 7 business days' notice, the contractor and each subcontractor shall make such records available at all reasonable hours at a location within this State.~~

Public Act 097-0571

HB3237 Enrolled

LRB097 10925 AEK 51483 b

(Source: P.A. 93-38, eff. 6-1-04; 94-515, eff. 8-10-05; 94-1023, eff. 7-12-06.)

(820 ILCS 130/6) (from Ch. 48, par. 39s-6)

Sec. 6. Any officer, agent or representative of any public body who wilfully violates, or willfully fails ~~omits~~ to comply with, any of the provisions of this Act, and any contractor or subcontractor, and any officer, employee, or agent ~~or representative~~ thereof, who as such officer, employee, or agent, has a duty to create, keep, maintain, or produce any record or document required by this Act to be created, kept, maintained, or produced who willfully fails to create, keep, maintain, or produce such record or document as or when required by this Act, ~~doing public work as aforesaid, who neglects to keep, or cause to be kept, an accurate record of the names, occupation and actual wages paid to each laborer, worker and mechanic employed by him, in connection with the public work or who refuses to allow access to same at any reasonable hour to any person authorized to inspect same under this Act,~~ is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

The Department of Labor shall inquire diligently as to any violation of this Act, shall institute actions for penalties herein prescribed, and shall enforce generally the provisions of this Act. The Attorney General shall prosecute such cases upon complaint by the Department or any interested person.

(Source: P.A. 94-488, eff. 1-1-06.)



(820 ILCS 130/11a) (from Ch. 48, par. 39s-11a)

Sec. 11a. The Director of the Department of Labor shall publish in the Illinois Register no less often than once each calendar quarter a list of contractors or subcontractors found to have disregarded their obligations to employees under this Act. The Department of Labor shall determine the contractors or subcontractors who, on 2 separate occasions within 5 years, have been determined to have violated the provisions of this Act. Upon such determination the Department shall notify the violating contractor or subcontractor. Such contractor or subcontractor shall then have 10 working days to request a hearing by the Department on the alleged violations. Failure to respond within the 10 working day period shall result in automatic and immediate placement and publication on the list. If the contractor or subcontractor requests a hearing within the 10 working day period, the Director shall set a hearing on the alleged violations. Such hearing shall take place no later than 45 calendar days after the receipt by the Department of Labor of the request for a hearing. The Department of Labor is empowered to promulgate, adopt, amend and rescind rules and regulations to govern the hearing procedure. No contract shall be awarded to a contractor or subcontractor appearing on the list, or to any firm, corporation, partnership or association in which such contractor or subcontractor has an interest until 4 years have elapsed from the date of publication of the list

Public Act 097-0571

HB3237 Enrolled

LRB097 10925 AEK 51483 b

containing the name of such contractor or subcontractor.

A contractor or subcontractor convicted or found guilty under Section 5 or 6 of this Act shall be subject to an automatic and immediate debarment, thereafter prohibited from participating in any public works project for 4 years, with no right to a hearing.

(Source: P.A. 93-38, eff. 6-1-04; 94-488, eff. 1-1-06.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect January 1, 2012.

## Public Act 097-0700

SB3809 Enrolled

LRB097 18921 RLC 64159 b

AN ACT concerning criminal law.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:

Section 5. The Park District Code is amended by changing  
Section 8-23 as follows:

(70 ILCS 1205/8-23)

Sec. 8-23. Criminal background investigations.

(a) An applicant for employment with a park district is required as a condition of employment to authorize an investigation to determine if the applicant has been convicted of, or adjudicated a delinquent minor for, any of the enumerated criminal or drug offenses in subsection (c) of this Section or has been convicted, within 7 years of the application for employment with the park district, of any other felony under the laws of this State or of any offense committed or attempted in any other state or against the laws of the United States that, if committed or attempted in this State, would have been punishable as a felony under the laws of this State. Authorization for the investigation shall be furnished by the applicant to the park district. Upon receipt of this authorization, the park district shall submit the applicant's name, sex, race, date of birth, and social security number to the Department of State Police on forms prescribed by the Department of State Police. The Department of State Police shall conduct a search of the Illinois criminal history records database to ascertain if the applicant being considered for employment has been convicted of, or adjudicated a delinquent minor for, committing or attempting to commit any of the enumerated criminal or drug offenses in subsection (c) of this Section or has been convicted of committing or attempting to commit, within 7 years of the application for employment with the park district, any other felony under the laws of this State. The Department of State Police shall charge the park district a fee for conducting the investigation, which fee shall be deposited in the State Police Services Fund and shall not exceed the cost of the inquiry. The applicant shall not be charged a fee by the park district for the investigation.

(b) If the search of the Illinois criminal history record database indicates that the applicant has been convicted of, or adjudicated a delinquent minor for, committing or attempting to commit any of the enumerated criminal or drug offenses in subsection (c) or has been convicted of committing or attempting to commit, within 7 years of the application for employment with the park district, any other felony under the laws of this State, the Department of State Police and the Federal Bureau of Investigation shall furnish, pursuant to a fingerprint based background check, records of convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor, until expunged, to the president of the park district. Any information concerning the

record of convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor obtained by the president shall be confidential and may only be transmitted to those persons who are necessary to the decision on whether to hire the applicant for employment. A copy of the record of convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor obtained from the Department of State Police shall be provided to the applicant for employment. Any person who releases any confidential information concerning any criminal convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor of an applicant for employment shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor, unless the release of such information is authorized by this Section.

(c) No park district shall knowingly employ a person who has been convicted, or adjudicated a delinquent minor, for committing attempted first degree murder or for committing or attempting to commit first degree murder, a Class X felony, or any one or more of the following offenses: (i) those defined in Sections 11-1.20, 11-1.30, 11-1.40, 11-1.50, 11-1.60, 11-6, 11-9, 11-14, 11-14.3, 11-14.4, 11-15, 11-15.1, 11-16, 11-17, 11-18, 11-19, 11-19.1, 11-19.2, 11-20, 11-20.1, 11-20.1B, 11-20.3, 11-21, 11-30, 12-7.3, 12-7.4, 12-7.5, 12-13, 12-14, 12-14.1, 12-15, and 12-16 of the Criminal Code of 1961; (ii) those defined in the Cannabis Control Act, except those defined in Sections 4(a), 4(b), and 5(a) of that Act; (iii) those defined in the Illinois Controlled Substances Act; (iv) those defined in the Methamphetamine Control and Community Protection Act; and (v) any offense committed or attempted in any other state or against the laws of the United States, which, if committed or attempted in this State, would have been punishable as one or more of the foregoing offenses. Further, no park district shall knowingly employ a person who has been found to be the perpetrator of sexual or physical abuse of any minor under 18 years of age pursuant to proceedings under Article II of the Juvenile Court Act of 1987. No park district shall knowingly employ a person for whom a criminal background investigation has not been initiated.  
(Source: P.A. 96-1551, eff. 7-1-11.)

Section 10. The Chicago Park District Act is amended by changing Section 16a-5 as follows:

(70 ILCS 1505/16a-5)

Sec. 16a-5. Criminal background investigations.

(a) An applicant for employment with the Chicago Park District is required as a condition of employment to authorize an investigation to determine if the applicant has been convicted of, or adjudicated a delinquent minor for, any of the enumerated criminal or drug offenses in subsection (c) of this Section or has been convicted, within 7 years of the application for employment with the Chicago Park District, of any other felony under the laws of this State or of any offense committed or attempted in any other state or against the laws of the United States that, if committed or attempted in this State, would have been punishable as a felony under the laws of this State. Authorization for the investigation shall be furnished by the applicant to the Chicago Park District. Upon receipt of this authorization, the Chicago Park District shall submit the applicant's name, sex, race, date of birth, and social security number to the Department of State Police on forms prescribed by the Department of State Police. The Department of State Police shall conduct a search of the

Illinois criminal history record information database to ascertain if the applicant being considered for employment has been convicted of, or adjudicated a delinquent minor for, committing or attempting to commit any of the enumerated criminal or drug offenses in subsection (c) of this Section or has been convicted, or attempting to commit, within 7 years of the application for employment with the Chicago Park District, any other felony under the laws of this State. The Department of State Police shall charge the Chicago Park District a fee for conducting the investigation, which fee shall be deposited in the State Police Services Fund and shall not exceed the cost of the inquiry. The applicant shall not be charged a fee by the Chicago Park District for the investigation.

(b) If the search of the Illinois criminal history record database indicates that the applicant has been convicted of, or adjudicated a delinquent minor for, committing or attempting to commit any of the enumerated criminal or drug offenses in subsection (c) or has been convicted of committing or attempting to commit, within 7 years of the application for employment with the Chicago Park District, any other felony under the laws of this State, the Department of State Police shall furnish, pursuant to a fingerprint based background check, records of convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor, until expunged, to the General Superintendent and Chief Executive Officer of the Chicago Park District. Any information concerning the record of convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor obtained by the General Superintendent and Chief Executive Officer shall be confidential and may only be transmitted to those persons who are necessary to the decision on whether to hire the applicant for employment. A copy of the record of convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor obtained from the Department of State Police shall be provided to the applicant for employment. Any person who releases any confidential information concerning any criminal convictions or adjudications as a delinquent minor of an applicant for employment shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor, unless the release of such information is authorized by this Section.

(c) The Chicago Park District may not knowingly employ a person who has been convicted, or adjudicated a delinquent minor, for committing attempted first degree murder or for committing or attempting to commit first degree murder, a Class X felony, or any one or more of the following offenses: (1) those defined in Sections 11-1.50, 11-1.40, 11-1.50, 11-1.60, 11-6, 11-9, 11-14.3, 11-14.4, 11-15.1, 11-16, 11-17, 11-18, 11-19.1, 11-19.2, 11-20.1, 11-20.1B, 11-20.3, 11-21, 11-30, 12-7.3, 12-7.4, 12-7.5, 12-13, 12-14, 12-14.1, 12-15, and 12-16 of the Criminal Code of 1961; (11) those defined in the Cannabis Control Act, except those defined in Sections 4(a), 4(b), and 5(a) of that Act; (111) those defined in the Illinois Controlled Substances Act; (1v) those defined in the Methamphetamine Control and Community Protection Act; and (v) any offense committed or attempted in any other state or against the laws of the United States, which, if committed or attempted in this State, would have been punishable as one or more of the foregoing offenses. Further, the Chicago Park District may not knowingly employ a person who has been found to be the perpetrator of sexual or physical abuse of any minor under 18 years of age pursuant to

proceedings under Article II of the Juvenile Court Act of 1987. The Chicago Park District may not knowingly employ a person for whom a criminal background investigation has not been initiated.

(Source: P.A. 96-1551, eff. 7-1-11.)

Section 15. The Juvenile Court Act of 1987 is amended by changing Sections 1-7 and 5-905 as follows:

(705 ILCS 405/1-7) (from Ch. 37, par. 801-7)

Sec. 1-7. Confidentiality of law enforcement records.

(A) Inspection and copying of law enforcement records maintained by law enforcement agencies that relate to a minor who has been arrested or taken into custody before his or her 17th birthday shall be restricted to the following:

(1) Any local, State or federal law enforcement officers of any jurisdiction or agency when necessary for the discharge of their official duties during the investigation or prosecution of a crime or relating to a minor who has been adjudicated delinquent and there has been a previous finding that the act which constitutes the previous offense was committed in furtherance of criminal activities by a criminal street gang, or, when necessary for the discharge of its official duties in connection with a particular investigation of the conduct of a law enforcement officer, an independent agency or its staff created by ordinance and charged by a unit of local government with the duty of investigating the conduct of law enforcement officers. For purposes of this Section, "criminal street gang" has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10 of the Illinois Streetgang Terrorism Omnibus Prevention Act.

(2) Prosecutors, probation officers, social workers, or other individuals assigned by the court to conduct a pre-adjudication or pre-disposition investigation, and individuals responsible for supervising or providing temporary or permanent care and custody for minors pursuant to the order of the juvenile court, when essential to performing their responsibilities.

(3) Prosecutors and probation officers:

(a) in the course of a trial when institution of criminal proceedings has been permitted or required under Section 5-805; or

(b) when institution of criminal proceedings has been permitted or required under Section 5-805 and such minor is the subject of a proceeding to determine the amount of bail; or

(c) when criminal proceedings have been permitted or required under Section 5-805 and such minor is the subject of a pre-trial investigation, pre-sentence investigation, fitness hearing, or proceedings on an application for probation.

(4) Adult and Juvenile Prisoner Review Board.

(5) Authorized military personnel.

(6) Persons engaged in bona fide research, with the permission of the Presiding Judge of the Juvenile Court and the chief executive of the respective law enforcement agency; provided that publication of such research results in no disclosure of a minor's identity and protects the confidentiality of the minor's record.

(7) Department of Children and Family Services child protection investigators acting in their official capacity.

(8) The appropriate school official. Inspection and copying shall be limited to law enforcement records transmitted to the appropriate school official by a local law enforcement agency under a reciprocal reporting system established and maintained between the school district and the local law enforcement agency under Section 10-20.14 of the School Code concerning a minor enrolled in a school within the school district who has been arrested or taken into custody for any of the following offenses:

(i) unlawful use of weapons under Section 24-1 of the Criminal Code of 1961;

(ii) a violation of the Illinois Controlled Substances Act;

(iii) a violation of the Cannabis Control Act;

(iv) a forcible felony as defined in Section 2-8 of the Criminal Code of 1961; or

(v) a violation of the Methamphetamine Control and Community Protection Act.

(9) Mental health professionals on behalf of the Illinois Department of Corrections or the Department of Human Services or prosecutors who are evaluating, prosecuting, or investigating a potential or actual petition brought under the Sexually Violent Persons Commitment Act relating to a person who is the subject of juvenile law enforcement records or the respondent to a petition brought under the Sexually Violent Persons Commitment Act who is the subject of the juvenile law enforcement records sought. Any records and any information obtained from those records under this paragraph (9) may be used only in sexually violent persons commitment proceedings.

(10) The president of a park district. Inspection and copying shall be limited to law enforcement records transmitted to the president of the park district by the Illinois State Police under Section 8-23 of the Park District Code or Section 16a-5 of the Chicago Park District Act concerning a person who is seeking employment with that park district and who has been adjudicated a juvenile delinquent for any of the offenses listed in subsection (c) of Section 8-23 of the Park District Code or subsection (c) of Section 16a-5 of the Chicago Park District Act.

(B) (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), no law enforcement officer or other person or agency may knowingly transmit to the Department of Corrections, Adult Division or the Department of State Police or to the Federal Bureau of Investigation any fingerprint or photograph relating to a minor who has been arrested or taken into custody before his or her 17th birthday, unless the court in proceedings under this Act authorizes the transmission or enters an order under Section 5-805 permitting or requiring the institution of criminal proceedings.

(2) Law enforcement officers or other persons or agencies shall transmit to the Department of State Police copies of fingerprints and descriptions of all minors who have been arrested or taken into custody before their 17th birthday for the offense of unlawful use of weapons under Article 24 of the Criminal Code of 1961, a Class X or Class

1 felony, a forcible felony as defined in Section 2-8 of the Criminal Code of 1961, or a Class 2 or greater felony under the Cannabis Control Act, the Illinois Controlled Substances Act, the Methamphetamine Control and Community Protection Act, or Chapter 4 of the Illinois Vehicle Code, pursuant to Section 5 of the Criminal Identification Act. Information reported to the Department pursuant to this Section may be maintained with records that the Department files pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Criminal Identification Act. Nothing in this Act prohibits a law enforcement agency from fingerprinting a minor taken into custody or arrested before his or her 17th birthday for an offense other than those listed in this paragraph (2).

(C) The records of law enforcement officers, or of an independent agency created by ordinance and charged by a unit of local government with the duty of investigating the conduct of law enforcement officers, concerning all minors under 17 years of age must be maintained separate from the records of arrests and may not be open to public inspection or their contents disclosed to the public except by order of the court presiding over matters pursuant to this Act or when the institution of criminal proceedings has been permitted or required under Section 5-805 or such a person has been convicted of a crime and is the subject of pre-sentence investigation or proceedings on an application for probation or when provided by law. For purposes of obtaining documents pursuant to this Section, a civil subpoena is not an order of the court.

(1) In cases where the law enforcement, or independent agency, records concern a pending juvenile court case, the party seeking to inspect the records shall provide actual notice to the attorney or guardian ad litem of the minor whose records are sought.

(2) In cases where the records concern a juvenile court case that is no longer pending, the party seeking to inspect the records shall provide actual notice to the minor or the minor's parent or legal guardian, and the matter shall be referred to the chief judge presiding over matters pursuant to this Act.

(3) In determining whether the records should be available for inspection, the court shall consider the minor's interest in confidentiality and rehabilitation over the moving party's interest in obtaining the information. Any records obtained in violation of this subsection (C) shall not be admissible in any criminal or civil proceeding, or operate to disqualify a minor from subsequently holding public office or securing employment, or operate as a forfeiture of any public benefit, right, privilege, or right to receive any license granted by public authority.

(D) Nothing contained in subsection (C) of this Section shall prohibit the inspection or disclosure to victims and witnesses of photographs contained in the records of law enforcement agencies when the inspection and disclosure is conducted in the presence of a law enforcement officer for the purpose of the identification or apprehension of any person subject to the provisions of this Act or for the investigation or prosecution of any crime.

(E) Law enforcement officers, and personnel of an independent agency created by ordinance and charged by a unit



of local government with the duty of investigating the conduct of law enforcement officers, may not disclose the identity of any minor in releasing information to the general public as to the arrest, investigation or disposition of any case involving a minor.

(F) Nothing contained in this Section shall prohibit law enforcement agencies from communicating with each other by letter, memorandum, teletype or intelligence alert bulletin or other means the identity or other relevant information pertaining to a person under 17 years of age if there are reasonable grounds to believe that the person poses a real and present danger to the safety of the public or law enforcement officers. The information provided under this subsection (F) shall remain confidential and shall not be publicly disclosed, except as otherwise allowed by law.

(G) Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the right of a Civil Service Commission or appointing authority of any state, county or municipality examining the character and fitness of an applicant for employment with a law enforcement agency, correctional institution, or fire department from obtaining and examining the records of any law enforcement agency relating to any record of the applicant having been arrested or taken into custody before the applicant's 17th birthday.  
(Source: P.A. 95-123, eff. 8-13-07; 96-419, eff. 8-13-09.)

(705 ILCS 405/5-905)

Sec. 5-905. Law enforcement records.

(1) Law Enforcement Records. Inspection and copying of law enforcement records maintained by law enforcement agencies that relate to a minor who has been arrested or taken into custody before his or her 17th birthday shall be restricted to the following and when necessary for the discharge of their official duties:

(a) A judge of the circuit court and members of the staff of the court designated by the judge;

(b) Law enforcement officers, probation officers or prosecutors or their staff, or, when necessary for the discharge of its official duties in connection with a particular investigation of the conduct of a law enforcement officer, an independent agency or its staff created by ordinance and charged by a unit of local government with the duty of investigating the conduct of law enforcement officers;

(c) The minor, the minor's parents or legal guardian and their attorneys, but only when the juvenile has been charged with an offense;

(d) Adult and Juvenile Prisoner Review Boards;

(e) Authorized military personnel;

(f) Persons engaged in bona fide research, with the permission of the judge of juvenile court and the chief executive of the agency that prepared the particular recording: provided that publication of such research results in no disclosure of a minor's identity and protects the confidentiality of the record;

(g) Individuals responsible for supervising or providing temporary or permanent care and custody of minors pursuant to orders of the juvenile court or directives from officials of the Department of Children and Family Services or the Department of Human Services who certify in writing that the information will not be disclosed to any other

party except as provided under law or order of court;

(h) The appropriate school official. Inspection and copying shall be limited to law enforcement records transmitted to the appropriate school official by a local law enforcement agency under a reciprocal reporting system established and maintained between the school district and the local law enforcement agency under Section 10-20.14 of the School Code concerning a minor enrolled in a school within the school district who has been arrested for any offense classified as a felony or a Class A or B misdemeanor.

(i) The president of a park district. Inspection and copying shall be limited to law enforcement records transmitted to the president of the park district by the Illinois State Police under Section 8-23 of the Park District Code or Section 16a-5 of the Chicago Park District Act concerning a person who is seeking employment with that park district and who has been adjudicated a juvenile delinquent for any of the offenses listed in subsection (c) of Section 8-23 of the Park District Code or subsection (c) of Section 16a-5 of the Chicago Park District Act.

(2) Information identifying victims and alleged victims of sex offenses, shall not be disclosed or open to public inspection under any circumstances. Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the victim or alleged victim of any sex offense from voluntarily disclosing his or her identity.

(2.5) If the minor is a victim of aggravated battery, battery, attempted first degree murder, or other non-sexual violent offense, the identity of the victim may be disclosed to appropriate school officials, for the purpose of preventing foreseeable future violence involving minors, by a local law enforcement agency pursuant to an agreement established between the school district and a local law enforcement agency subject to the approval by the presiding judge of the juvenile court.

(3) Relevant information, reports and records shall be made available to the Department of Juvenile Justice when a juvenile offender has been placed in the custody of the Department of Juvenile Justice.

(4) Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the inspection or disclosure to victims and witnesses of photographs contained in the records of law enforcement agencies when the inspection or disclosure is conducted in the presence of a law enforcement officer for purposes of identification or apprehension of any person in the course of any criminal investigation or prosecution.

(5) The records of law enforcement officers, or of an independent agency created by ordinance and charged by a unit of local government with the duty of investigating the conduct of law enforcement officers, concerning all minors under 17 years of age must be maintained separate from the records of adults and may not be open to public inspection or their contents disclosed to the public except by order of the court or when the institution of criminal proceedings has been permitted under Section 5-130 or 5-805 or required under Section 5-130 or 5-805 or such a person has been convicted of a crime and is the subject of pre-sentence investigation or when provided by law.

(6) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection (6), law enforcement officers, and personnel of an independent

agency created by ordinance and charged by a unit of local government with the duty of investigating the conduct of law enforcement officers, may not disclose the identity of any minor in releasing information to the general public as to the arrest, investigation or disposition of any case involving a minor. Any victim or parent or legal guardian of a victim may petition the court to disclose the name and address of the minor and the minor's parents or legal guardian, or both. Upon a finding by clear and convincing evidence that the disclosure is either necessary for the victim to pursue a civil remedy against the minor or the minor's parents or legal guardian, or both, or to protect the victim's person or property from the minor, then the court may order the disclosure of the information to the victim or to the parent or legal guardian of the victim only for the purpose of the victim pursuing a civil remedy against the minor or the minor's parents or legal guardian, or both, or to protect the victim's person or property from the minor.

(7) Nothing contained in this Section shall prohibit law enforcement agencies when acting in their official capacity from communicating with each other by letter, memorandum, teletype or intelligence alert bulletin or other means the identity or other relevant information pertaining to a person under 17 years of age. The information provided under this subsection (7) shall remain confidential and shall not be publicly disclosed, except as otherwise allowed by law.

(8) No person shall disclose information under this Section except when acting in his or her official capacity and as provided by law or order of court.

(Source: P.A. 96-419, eff. 8-13-09; 96-1414, eff. 1-1-11.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

**Effective Date: 6/22/2012**

**Public Act 097-1103**

SB3184 Enrolled

LRB097 19368 KMW 64621 b

AN ACT concerning local government.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:

Section 5. The Park District Code is amended by changing  
Section 6-2 as follows:

(70 ILCS 1205/6-2) (from Ch. 105, par. 6-2)

Sec. 6-2. For the payment of land condemned or purchased for parks or boulevards, for the building, maintaining, improving and protecting of the same and for the payment of the expenses incident thereto, or for the acquisition of real estate and lands to be used as a site for an armory, or for the refunding of its bonds which are payable solely from the revenues derived from the operation of any of its facilities, any park district is authorized to issue the bonds or notes of such park district and pledge its property and credit therefor to an amount including existing principal indebtedness of such district so that the aggregate principal indebtedness of such district does not exceed 2.875% of the value of the taxable property therein, to be ascertained by the last assessment for state and county taxes previous to the issue from time to time of such bonds or notes, unless a petition, signed by voters in number equal to not less than 2% of the voters of the district, who voted at the last general election in the district, asking that the authorized aggregate principal indebtedness of the district be increased to not more than 5.75% of the value of the taxable property therein, is presented to the board and such increase is approved by the voters of the district at a referendum held on the question, in which case such aggregate principal indebtedness may not exceed 5.75% of the value of the taxable property in the district. Notice of the referendum shall be given and the referendum conducted in the manner provided by the general election law. Bonds for airport purposes issued by a park district under Section 9-2b and up to \$15,000,000 in bonds issued by the Carol Stream Park District approved by referendum at the February 2, 2010 general primary election are not subject to the percentage limitations imposed by ~~this Section~~, and shall not be considered as part of the existing principal indebtedness of that district for the purposes of, this Section or any other applicable statutory debt limitation.

(Source: P.A. 86-494.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

**Effective Date: 8/27/2012**

Public Act 097-0851

HB3892 Enrolled

LRB097 14682 KMW 59628 b

AN ACT concerning local government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Downstate Forest Preserve District Act is amended by changing Sections 6 and 8 as follows:

(70 ILCS 805/6) (from Ch. 96 1/2, par. 6309)

Sec. 6. Acquisition of property. Any such District shall have power to acquire lands and grounds for the aforesaid purposes by lease, or in fee simple by gift, grant, legacy, purchase or condemnation, or to acquire easements in land, and to construct, lay out, improve and maintain wells, power plants, comfort stations, shelter houses, paths, driveways, public roads, roadways and other improvements and facilities in and through such forest preserves as they shall deem necessary or desirable for the use of such forest preserves by the public and may acquire, develop, improve and maintain waterways in conjunction with the district. No district with a population less than 600,000 shall have the power to purchase, condemn, lease or acquire an easement in property within a municipality without the concurrence of the governing body of the municipality, except where such district is acquiring land for a linear park or trail not to exceed 100 yards in width or is acquiring land contiguous to an existing park or forest

such terms and conditions as may be determined by such District.

Any such District may purchase, but not condemn, a parcel of land and sell a portion thereof for not less than fair market value pursuant to resolution of the Board. Such resolution shall be passed by the affirmative vote of at least 2/3 of all members of the board within 30 days after acquisition by the district of such parcel.

The corporate authorities of a forest preserve district that (i) is located in a county that has more than 700,000 inhabitants, (ii) borders a county that has 1,000,000 or more inhabitants, and (iii) also borders another state, by ordinance or resolution, may authorize the sale or public auction of a structure located on land owned by the district if (i) the structure existed on the land prior to the district's acquisition of the land, (ii) two-thirds of the members of the board of commissioners then holding office find that the structure is not necessary or is not useful to or for the best interest of the forest preserve district, (iii) a condition of sale or auction requires the transferee of the structure to remove the structure from district land, and (iv) prior to the sale or auction, the fair market value of the structure is determined by a written MAI-certified appraisal or by a written certified appraisal of a State certified or licensed real estate appraiser and the appraisal is available for public inspection. The ordinance or resolution shall (i) direct the

sale to be conducted by the staff of the district, a listing with local licensed real estate agencies (in which case the terms of the agent's compensation shall be included in the ordinance or resolution), or by public auction, (ii) be published within 7 days after its passage in a newspaper published in the district, and (iii) contain pertinent information concerning the nature of the structure and any terms or conditions of sale or auction. No earlier than 14 days after the publication, the corporate authorities may accept any offer for the structure determined by them to be in the best interest of the district by a vote of two-thirds of the corporate authorities then holding office.

Whenever the board of any forest preserve district determines that the public interest will be subserved by vacating any street, roadway, or driveway, or part thereof, located within a forest preserve, it may vacate that street, roadway, or driveway, or part thereof, by an ordinance passed by the affirmative vote of at least 3/4 of all the members of the board, except that the affirmative vote of at least 6/7 of all the members of the board is required if the board members are elected under Section 3c of this Act. This vote shall be taken by ayes and nays and entered in the records of the board.

The determination of the board that the nature and extent of the public use or public interest to be subserved is such as to warrant the vacation of any street, roadway, or driveway, or part thereof, is conclusive, and the passage of such an

\$20,000 or less may be let without advertising for bids, but whenever practicable, at least 3 competitive bids shall be obtained before letting such contract. All contracts for supplies, material or work shall be signed by the president of the board of commissioners or by any such other officer as the board in its discretion may designate.

(c) The president of any board of commissioners appointed under the provisions of Section 3a of this Act shall receive a salary not to exceed the sum of \$2500 per annum and the salary of other members of the board so appointed shall not exceed \$1500 per annum. Salaries of the commissioners, officers and employees shall be fixed by ordinance.

(d) Whenever a forest preserve district owns any personal property that, in the opinion of three-fifths of the members of the board of commissioners is no longer necessary, useful to, or for the best interests of the forest preserve district, then three-fifths of the members of the board, at any regular meeting or any special meeting called for that purpose by an ordinance or resolution that includes a general description of the personal property, may authorize the conveyance or sale of that personal property in any manner that they may designate, with or without advertising the sale.

(Source: P.A. 93-897, eff. 1-1-05.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.



Public Act 097-1016

HB5899 Enrolled

LRB097 19241 KMW 64483 b

AN ACT concerning local government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Counties Code is amended by changing Section 5-1104.1 as follows:

(55 ILCS 5/5-1104.1) (from Ch. 34, par. 5-1104.1)

Sec. 5-1104.1. If a forest preserve district organized under the Downstate Forest Preserve District Act has, either before or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of 1991, adopted a comprehensive policy for the management and maintenance of the streams, lakes, ponds and water courses located on the property owned by the district, the power conferred on a county board under Section 5-1104 shall be exercised in a manner consistent with such comprehensive policy and only pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement between the forest preserve district and the county specifying in detail the respective obligations of the parties.

A county may, either before or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 97th General Assembly, enter into an intergovernmental agreement with any forest preserve district within the county that exempts the forest preserve district from compliance with county zoning ordinances.

(Source: P.A. 87-847.)

AN ACT concerning health regulation.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Swimming Facility Act is amended by changing Sections 2, 3, 3.01, 3.02, 3.05, 3.10, 3.12, 3.13, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 13, 17, 20, 21, 22, 23, and 27 and by adding Sections 3.14, 3.15, 3.16, 3.17, 3.18, 3.19, 3.20, 3.21, 3.22, 3.23, 3.24, 5.1, 5.2, 8.1, 8.2, 8.3, 20.5, 22.2, 30, 31, and 32 as follows:

(210 ILCS 125/2) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1202)

Sec. 2. Legislative purpose. It is found that there exists, and may in the future exist, within the State of Illinois public swimming facilities, including swimming pools, spas, water slides, public bathing beaches, and other swimming facilities, which are substandard in one or more important features of safety, cleanliness or sanitation. Such conditions adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare of persons.

Therefore, the purpose of this Act is to protect, promote and preserve the public health, safety and general welfare by providing for the establishment and enforcement of minimum standards for safety, cleanliness and general sanitation for all swimming facilities, including swimming pools, spas, water

slides, public bathing beaches, and other aquatic features now in existence or hereafter constructed, developed, or altered, and to provide for inspection and licensing of all such facilities.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/3) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1203)

Sec. 3. Definitions. As used in this Act, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms specified in Sections 3.01 through 3.24 ~~3.13~~ have the meanings ascribed to them in those Sections.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.01) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1203.01)

Sec. 3.01. Swimming pool. "Swimming Pool" means any artificial basin of water which is modified, improved, constructed or installed for the purpose of public swimming, wading, floating, or diving, and includes: pools for community use, pools at apartments, condominiums, and other groups or associations having 5 or more living units, clubs, churches, camps, schools, institutions, Y.M.C.A.'s, Y.W.C.A.'s, parks, recreational areas, motels, hotels, health clubs, golf and country clubs, and other commercial establishments. It does not include pools at private single-family residences intended only for the use of the owner and guests.

(Source: P.A. 92-18, eff. 6-28-01.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.02) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1203.02)

Sec. 3.02. "Public Bathing Beach" means any body of water, except as defined in Section 3.01, or that portion thereof used for the purpose of public swimming or recreational bathing, and includes beaches at: apartments, condominiums, subdivisions, and other groups or associations having 5 or more living units, clubs, churches, camps, schools, institutions, parks, recreational areas, motels, hotels and other commercial establishments. It includes shores, equipments, buildings and appurtenances pertaining to such areas. It does not include bathing beaches at private residences intended only for the use of the owner and guests.

(Source: P.A. 78-1149.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.05) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1203.05)

Sec. 3.05. "Person" means any individual, group of individuals, association, trust, partnership, limited liability company, corporation, person doing business under an assumed name, county, municipality, the State of Illinois, or any political subdivision or department thereof, or any other entity.

(Source: P.A. 78-1149.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.10)

Sec. 3.10. Spa. "Spa" means a basin of water designed for

recreational or therapeutic use that is not drained, cleaned, or refilled for each user. It may include hydrojet circulation, hot water, cold water mineral bath, air induction bubbles, or some combination thereof. It includes "therapeutic pools", "hydrotherapy pools", "whirlpools", "cold spas", "hot spas", and "hot tubs". It does not include these facilities at individual single-family residences intended for use by the occupant and his or her guests.

(Source: P.A. 92-18, eff. 6-28-01.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.12)

Sec. 3.12. Swimming facility. "Swimming Facility" means a swimming pool, spa, public bathing beach, ~~water slide, lazy river, spray pool,~~ or ~~other~~ aquatic feature and its appurtenances, singular or aggregated together, that exists for the purpose of providing recreation or therapeutic services to the public. It does not include isolation or flotation tanks.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.13)

Sec. 3.13. Spray pool. "Spray pool" means an aquatic feature ~~recreational facility~~ that is not a swimming pool and that has structures or fittings for spraying, dumping, or shooting water. The term does not include features ~~facilities~~ having as a source of water a public water supply that is

regulated by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or the Illinois Department of Public Health and that has no capacity to recycle water.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/3.14 new)

Sec. 3.14. Prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer. "Prequalified architect" or "prequalified professional engineer" means an individual who is prequalified by the Department and is responsible for coordinating the design, planning, and creation of specifications for swimming facilities and for applying for a permit for construction or major alteration.

(210 ILCS 125/3.15 new)

Sec. 3.15. Prequalified swimming facility contractor. "Prequalified swimming facility contractor" means a person who is prequalified by the Department to perform the construction, installation, modification, or repair of a swimming facility and its appurtenances.

(210 ILCS 125/3.16 new)

Sec. 3.16. Aquatic feature. "Aquatic feature" means any single element of a swimming facility other than a swimming pool or spa or bathing beach, including, but not limited to, a lazy river, water slide, spray pool, or other feature that

provides aquatic recreation or therapy.

(210 ILCS 125/3.17 new)

Sec. 3.17. Lapsed fee. "Lapsed fee" means the amount charged to a licensee for failing to renew a swimming facility license within one year after the expiration of the license. This fee is in addition to any other fees associated with renewal of a swimming facility license.

(210 ILCS 125/3.18 new)

Sec. 3.18. Living unit. "Living unit" means a home, mobile home, duplex unit, apartment unit, condominium unit, or any dwelling unit in a multi-unit residential structure or a campground lot.

(210 ILCS 125/3.19 new)

Sec. 3.19. Major alteration. "Major alteration" means any change to a swimming facility or its aquatic features or appurtenances that alters the facility's functionality or as-built or as-permitted condition. This includes, but is not limited to, an alteration of a pool that changes the water surface area, depth, or volume, addition of a permanently installed appurtenance such as a diving board, slide, or starting platform, modification of the design of the recirculation system, and replacement or modification of a bather preparation facility. It does not include maintenance or

minor repair or the replacement of equipment with comparable components.

(210 ILCS 125/3.20 new)

Sec. 3.20. Subsequent inspection. "Subsequent inspection" means any inspection made by the Department or its agents or certified local health departments that are authorized by local government ordinance to administer and enforce this Act for purposes of annual renewals, responding to a substantiated complaint, complying with a request by the licensee or its agent, or ensuring compliance with an order of the Department. The term does not include initial inspections performed by the Department relating to permitted construction, interim compliance inspections, or Department inspections in a case in which no violations are found.

(210 ILCS 125/3.21 new)

Sec. 3.21. Initial review. "Initial review" means the first review of any submittal made by an applicant for a permit for construction or major alteration, as provided for in Section 5 of this Act. If the requirements of Section 5 are met, a permit shall be issued; otherwise the Department shall issue correspondence indicating deficiencies.

(210 ILCS 125/3.22 new)

Sec. 3.22. Initial inspection. "Initial inspection" means



an inspection conducted by the Department to determine compliance with this Act and rules promulgated thereunder in order to approve the operation of a swimming facility after the Department has issued a permit for construction or major alteration.

(210 ILCS 125/3.23 new)

Sec. 3.23. Agent health department. "Agent health department" means a certified local health department that the Department has designated as its agent for making inspections and investigations under Section 11 of this Act.

(210 ILCS 125/3.24 new)

Sec. 3.24. Ordinance health department. "Ordinance health department" means a certified local health department belonging to a unit of local government that has adopted an ordinance electing to administer and enforce this Act and adopting, by reference, the rules adopted and amended from time to time by the Department under the authority of Section 27 of this Act.

(210 ILCS 125/4) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1204)

Sec. 4. License to operate. After May 1, 2002, it shall be unlawful for any person to open, establish, maintain or operate a swimming facility within this State without first obtaining a license therefor from the Department or, where applicable, from

the ordinance health department. Applications for original licenses shall be made on forms furnished by the Department or, where applicable, by an ordinance health department. Each application ~~to the Department~~ shall be signed by the applicant and accompanied by an affidavit of the applicant as to the truth of the application and, ~~except in the case of an application by an organization incorporated under the General Not for Profit Corporation Act, as amended, by the payment of a license application fee of \$50. License fees are not refundable.~~ Each application shall contain: the name and address of the applicant, or names and addresses of the partners if the applicant is a partnership, or the name and addresses of the officers if the applicant is a corporation or the names and addresses of all persons having an interest therein if the applicant is a group of individuals, association, or trust; and the location of the swimming facility. A license shall be valid only in the possession of the person to whom it is issued and shall not be the subject of sale, assignment, or other transfer, voluntary, or involuntary, nor shall the license be valid for any premises other than those for which originally issued. Upon receipt of an application for an original license, the Department or, where applicable, the ordinance health department shall inspect such swimming facility to insure compliance with this Act. In no case shall license fees be assessed by both the Department and the ordinance health department.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/5) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1205)

Sec. 5. Permit for construction or major alteration. No swimming facility shall be constructed, ~~developed, installed,~~ or altered in a major manner until plans, specifications, and other information relative to such swimming facility and appurtenant facilities as may be requested on forms provided by the Department are submitted to and reviewed by the Department and found to comply with minimum sanitary and safety requirements and design criteria, and until a permit for the construction or major alteration ~~development~~ is issued by the Department. Permits are valid for a period of one year from date of issue. They may be reissued upon application to the Department and payment of the permit fee ~~as provided in this Act.~~

The fee to be paid by an applicant, ~~other than an organization incorporated under the General Not for Profit Corporation Act, as now or hereafter amended,~~ for a permit for construction, ~~development,~~ major alteration, or installation of each swimming facility shall be in accordance with Sections 8.1, 8.2, and 8.3 of this Act and ~~is \$50, which~~ shall accompany such application.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/5.1 new)

Sec. 5.1. Permit applications; certification. Permit applications shall be made by an architect or engineer prequalified in accordance with Section 30 of this Act. Such applications shall include the sealed technical submissions of the prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer responsible for the application. The requirements for permit applications by a prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer shall take effect upon adoption of rules to implement Section 30 of this Act.

(210 ILCS 125/5.2 new)

Sec. 5.2. Plan resubmittal. Those permit applications failing to qualify for a permit for construction or major alteration after review by the Department shall be supplemented within 30 days by a plan resubmittal. Such resubmittals shall include, but not be limited to, revised plans, specifications and other required documentation sufficient to correct deficiencies in the application and demonstrate compliance with the rules. All plan resubmittals shall be submitted to the Department by a prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer and shall be accompanied by a fee in accordance with Sections 8.1, 8.2 and 8.3 of this Act. The requirements for plan resubmittal by a prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer shall take effect upon adoption of rules to implement Section 30 of this Act.

(210 ILCS 125/6) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1206)

Sec. 6. License renewal. Applications and fees for renewal of the license shall be made in writing by the holder of the license, on forms furnished by the Department or, where applicable, the ordinance health department, and, except in the case of an application by an organization incorporated under the General Not for Profit Corporation Act, as now or hereafter amended, shall be accompanied by a license application fee in accordance with Sections 8.1, 8.2, and 8.3 of this Act for fees assessed by the Department or as established by local ordinance for fees assessed by the ordinance health department ~~of \$50,~~ which shall not be refundable, and shall contain any change in the information submitted since the original license was issued or the latest renewal granted. In addition to any other fees required under this Act, a late fee in accordance with Sections 8.1, 8.2, and 8.3 of this Act ~~of \$20~~ shall be charged when any renewal application is received by the Department after the license has expired or as established by local ordinance for fees assessed by the ordinance health department; however, educational institutions and units of State or local government shall not be required to pay late fees. If, after inspection, the Department or the ordinance health department is satisfied that the swimming facility is in substantial compliance with the provisions of this Act and the rules ~~and regulations~~ issued thereunder, the Department or the ordinance health department shall issue the renewal license. No license shall be renewed if

the licensee has unpaid fines, fees, or penalties owed to the Department. In no case shall license renewal or late fees be assessed by both the Department and the ordinance health department.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/7) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1207)

Sec. 7. Conditional license. If the Department or, where applicable, the ordinance health department finds that the facilities of any swimming facility for which a license is sought are not in compliance with the provisions of this Act and the rules of the Department relating thereto, but may operate without undue prejudice to the public, the Department or the ordinance health department may issue a conditional license setting forth the conditions on which the license is issued, the manner in which the swimming facility fails to comply with the Act and such rules, and shall set forth the time, not to exceed 3 years, within which the applicant must make any changes or corrections necessary to fully comply with this Act and the rules ~~and regulations~~ of the Department relating thereto. No more than 3 such consecutive annual conditional licenses may be issued.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/8) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1208)

Sec. 8. Payment of fees; display of licenses. All fees and

penalties generated under the authority of this Act, except fees collected by agent health departments or ordinance health departments, shall be deposited into the Facility Licensing Fund and, subject to appropriation, shall be used by the Department in the administration of this Act. All fees and penalties shall be submitted in the form of a check or money order, ~~or by other means authorized by the Department,~~ agent health department, or ordinance health department. All licenses provided for in this Act shall be displayed in a conspicuous place for public view, within or on such premises. In case of revocation or suspension, the licensee ~~owner or operator or both~~ shall cause the license to be removed and to post the notice of revocation or suspension issued by the Department or ordinance health department. Fees for a permit for construction or major alteration, an original license, and a plan resubmittal shall be determined by the total water surface area of the swimming facility, except that aquatic features and bathing beaches shall be charged a fixed fee regardless of water surface area. License renewal fees assessed by the Department shall be determined by the total water surface area of the swimming facility, except that aquatic features and bathing beaches shall be charged a fixed fee regardless of water surface area. Late renewal, lapsed, initial inspection, and subsequent inspection fees assessed by the Department shall be fixed fees regardless of water surface area.

Fees assessed by the Department shall be determined in accordance with the ownership designation of the swimming facility at the time of application. Fees assessed by agent health departments and ordinance health departments may be established by local ordinance.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/8.1 new)

Sec. 8.1. Fee schedule for fees assessed by the Department for all licensees except certain tax-exempt organizations, governmental units, and public elementary and secondary schools. The fee schedule for fees assessed by the Department for all licensees, except those specifically identified in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 of this Act, shall be as follows:

<u>Water Surface</u>	<u>Construction</u>	<u>Major</u>	<u>Plan</u>
<u>Area or Other</u>	<u>Permit Fee</u>	<u>Alteration Fee</u>	<u>Resubmittal</u>
<u>Feature</u>			<u>Fee</u>
<u>0-500 sq ft</u>	<u>\$625</u>	<u>\$310</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>501-1,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$1,250</u>	<u>\$625</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>1,001-2,000 sq</u>			
<u>ft</u>	<u>\$1,500</u>	<u>\$750</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>2,001 sq ft and</u>			
<u>up</u>	<u>\$1,950</u>	<u>\$975</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>Aquatic Feature</u>	<u>\$625</u>	<u>\$310</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>Bathing Beach</u>	<u>\$625</u>	<u>\$310</u>	<u>\$200</u>



<u>Water Surface Area or Other Feature</u>	<u>Original License and License Renewal Fee</u>
<u>0-500 sq ft</u>	<u>\$150</u>
<u>501-1,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$300</u>
<u>1,001-2,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$400</u>
<u>2,001 sq ft and up</u>	<u>\$500</u>
<u>Aquatic Feature</u>	<u>\$150</u>
<u>Bathing Beach</u>	<u>\$150</u>
<u>Late Renewal Fee</u>	<u>\$100</u>
<u>Lapsed Fee</u>	<u>\$150</u>
<u>Inspections</u>	<u>Fee</u>
<u>Initial Inspection</u>	<u>\$150</u>
<u>Subsequent Inspection</u>	<u>\$100</u>

All fees set forth in this Section shall be charged on a per-swimming-facility or per-aquatic-feature basis, unless otherwise noted.

(210 ILCS 125/8.2 new)

Sec. 8.2. Fee schedule for fees assessed by the Department for certain tax-exempt organizations. The fee schedule for fees assessed by the Department for a licensee that is an organization recognized by the United States Internal Revenue Service as tax-exempt under Title 26 of the United States Code,

Section 501(c) (3) shall be as follows:

<u>Water Surface</u>	<u>Construction</u>	<u>Major Alteration</u>	<u>Plan</u>
<u>Area or Other</u>	<u>Permit Fee</u>	<u>Fee</u>	<u>Resubmittal</u>
<u>Feature</u>			<u>Fee</u>
<u>0-500 sq ft</u>	<u>\$150</u>	<u>\$50</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>501-1,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$150</u>	<u>\$50</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>1,001-2,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$150</u>	<u>\$50</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>2,001 sq ft and</u>			
<u>up</u>	<u>\$150</u>	<u>\$200</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>Aquatic Feature</u>	<u>\$600</u>	<u>\$300</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>Bathing Beach</u>	<u>\$150</u>	<u>\$50</u>	<u>\$200</u>

<u>Water Surface Area or Other</u>	<u>Original License and License</u>
<u>Feature</u>	<u>Renewal Fee</u>
<u>0-500 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>501-1,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>1,001-2,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>2,001 sq ft and up</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>Aquatic Feature</u>	<u>\$75</u>
<u>Bathing Beach</u>	<u>\$75</u>
<u>Late Renewal Fee</u>	<u>\$50</u>
<u>Lapsed Fee</u>	<u>\$75</u>
<u>Inspections</u>	<u>Fee</u>
<u>Initial Inspection</u>	<u>\$0</u>

Subsequent Inspection                      \$100

All fees set forth in this Section shall be charged on a per-swimming-facility or per-aquatic-feature basis.

(210 ILCS 125/8.3 new)

Sec. 8.3. Fee schedule for fees assessed by the Department for certain governmental units and schools. The fee schedule for fees assessed by the Department for a licensee that is a unit of State or local government or a public elementary or secondary school shall be as follows:

<u>Water Surface</u>	<u>Construction</u>	<u>Major Alteration</u>	<u>Plan</u>
<u>Area or Other</u>	<u>Permit Fee</u>	<u>Permit Fee</u>	<u>Resubmittal</u>
<u>Feature</u>			<u>Fee</u>
<u>0-500 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>501-1,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>1,001-2,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>2,001 sq ft and</u>			
<u>up</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>Aquatic Feature</u>	<u>\$600</u>	<u>\$300</u>	<u>\$200</u>
<u>Bathing Beach</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$200</u>

<u>Water Surface Area or Other</u>	<u>Original License and License</u>
<u>Feature</u>	<u>Renewal Fee</u>
<u>0-500 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>

<u>501-1,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>1,001-2,000 sq ft</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>2,001 sq ft and up</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>Aquatic Feature</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>Bathing Beach</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>Late Renewal Fee</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>Lapsed Fee</u>	<u>\$0</u>

<u>Inspections</u>	<u>Fee</u>
<u>Initial Inspection</u>	<u>\$0</u>
<u>Subsequent Inspection</u>	<u>\$100</u>

Construction permit fees and major alteration permit fees set forth in this Section shall be due only if the Department produces an initial review within 60 days after receipt of the application. The fees for aquatic features under this Section shall cover all aquatic features at a particular facility, and an aquatic feature fee is not required for each and every aquatic feature.

(210 ILCS 125/9) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1209)

Sec. 9. Inspections. Subject to constitutional limitations, the Department, by its representatives, after proper identification, is authorized and shall have the power to enter at reasonable times upon private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and investigating conditions

relating to the enforcement of this Act and rules regulations issued hereunder. Written notice of all violations shall be given to each person against whom a violation is alleged the owners, operators and licensees of swimming facilities.

(Source: P.A. 92-18, eff. 6-28-01.)

(210 ILCS 125/11) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1211)

Sec. 11. Department's agents. The Department may designate certified local health departments as its agents for purposes of carrying out this Act. An agent so designated may charge fees for costs associated with enforcing this Act. Where the agent determines that it cannot perform an inspection under this Act, the Department shall perform the inspection and any applicable fees shall be payable to the Department and the agent may not charge a fee. If the Department performs a service or activity for the agent that the agent cannot perform, the fee for the service or activity shall be paid to the Department and not to the agent. In no case shall fees be assessed by both the Department and an agent for the same service or activity. ~~full-time Municipal, District, County or multiple County Health Departments as its agents in making inspections and investigations.~~

(Source: P.A. 78-1149.)

(210 ILCS 125/13) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1213)

Sec. 13. Rules. The Department shall promulgate, publish,

adopt and amend such rules as may be necessary for the proper enforcement of this Act, to protect the health and safety of the public using swimming facilities ~~such pools and beaches, spas, and their other~~ appurtenances, and may, when necessary, utilize the services of any other state agencies to assist in carrying out the purposes of this Act. These rules shall include but are not limited to design criteria for swimming facility areas and bather preparation facilities, standards relating to sanitation, cleanliness, plumbing, water supply, sewage and solid waste disposal, design and construction of all equipment, buildings, rodent and insect control, communicable disease control, safety and sanitation of appurtenant swimming facilities. The rules must include provisions for the prevention of bather entrapment or entanglement at new and existing swimming facilities. Bather preparation facilities consisting of dressing room space, toilets and showers shall be available for use of patrons of swimming facilities, except as provided by Department rules.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/17) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1217)

Sec. 17. Subpoenas; witness fees. The Director or Hearing Officer may compel by subpoena or subpoena duces tecum the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of records or documents either in electronic or paper form ~~books and papers~~ and administer oaths to witnesses. All subpoenas

issued by the Director or Hearing Officer may be served as provided for in a civil action.

The fees of witnesses for attendance and travel shall be the same as the fees for witnesses before the circuit court and shall be paid by the party to such proceeding at whose request the subpoena is issued. If such subpoena is issued at the request of the Department, the witness fee shall be paid as an administrative expense.

In cases of refusal of a witness to attend or testify, or to produce records or documents ~~books or papers~~, concerning any matter upon which he might be lawfully examined, the circuit court of the county where the hearing is held, upon application of any party to the proceeding, may compel obedience by proceeding as for contempt.

(Source: P.A. 83-334.)

(210 ILCS 125/20) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1220)

Sec. 20. Judicial review. The Department is not required to certify any record or file any answer or otherwise appear in any proceeding for judicial review unless there is filed in the court with the complaint a receipt from the Department acknowledging payment of the costs of furnishing and certifying the record, which costs shall be computed at the rate of \$1 per page of such record ~~the party filing the complaint deposits with the clerk of the court the sum of \$1 per page representing costs of such certification.~~ Failure on the part of the

plaintiff to make such deposit shall be grounds for dismissal of the action.

(Source: P.A. 82-1057.)

(210 ILCS 125/20.5 new)

Sec. 20.5. Reproduction of records. The Department may charge \$0.25 per each 8.5" x 11" page, whether paper or electronic, for copies of records held by the Department pursuant to this Act. For documents larger than 8.5" x 11", actual copying costs plus \$0.25 per page shall apply.

(210 ILCS 125/21) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1221)

Sec. 21. Closure of facility. Whenever the Department finds any violation of this Act or the rules promulgated under this Act, if the violation presents an emergency or risk to public health, the Department shall, without prior notice or hearing, issue a written notice, immediately order the owner, operator, or licensee to close the swimming facility and to prohibit any person from using such facilities. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Act, such order shall be effective immediately.

The notice shall state the reasons prompting the closing of the facilities and a copy of the notice must be posted conspicuously at the pool or beach by the owner, operator or licensee.

The Attorney General and the State's Attorney and Sheriff



of the county in which the swimming facility is located shall enforce the closing order after receiving notice thereof.

Any owner, operator or licensee affected by such an order is entitled, upon written request to the Department, to a hearing as provided in this Act.

When such violations are abated in the opinion of the Department, the Department may authorize reopening the swimming facility.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/22) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1222)

Sec. 22. Criminal penalties. Any person who violates this Act or any rule ~~or regulation~~ adopted by the Department, or who violates any determination or order of the Department under this Act, shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor punishable by a fine of \$1,000 for each day the violation exists, in addition to civil penalties, or up to 6 months imprisonment, or both a fine and imprisonment.

Each day's violation constitutes a separate offense. The State's Attorney of the county in which the violation occurred, or the Attorney General shall bring such actions in the name of the people of the State of Illinois, ~~or may in addition to other remedies provided in this Act, bring action for an injunction to restrain such violation, or to enjoin the operation of any such establishment.~~

(Source: P.A. 78-1149.)

(210 ILCS 125/22.2 new)

Sec. 22.2. Civil enforcement. The Department may impose administrative civil penalties for violations of this Act and the rules promulgated thereunder, pursuant to rules for such penalties adopted by the Department. The State's Attorney of the county in which the violation occurred, or the Attorney General, shall bring actions for collection of penalties imposed under this Section in the name of the people of the State of Illinois. The State's Attorney or Attorney General may, in addition to other remedies provided in this Act, bring an action (i) for an injunction to restrain the violation, (ii) to impose civil penalties (if no penalty has been imposed by the Department), or (iii) to enjoin the operation of any such person or establishment.

(210 ILCS 125/23) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1223)

Sec. 23. Applicability of Act. Nothing in this Act shall be construed to exclude the State of Illinois and Departments and educational institutions thereof and units of local government except that the provisions in this Act for fees or late fees for licenses and permits, and the provisions for civil penalties, fines ~~fine~~ and imprisonment shall not apply to the State of Illinois, to Departments and educational institutions thereof, or units of local government. This Act shall not apply to beaches operated by units of local government located on

Lake Michigan.

(Source: P.A. 96-1081, eff. 7-16-10.)

(210 ILCS 125/27) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 1227)

Sec. 27. Adoption of ordinances. Any unit of government having a certified local ~~full-time municipal, district, county or multiple-county health department and which employs full-time a physician licensed in Illinois to practice medicine in all its branches and a professional engineer, registered in Illinois, with a minimum of 2 years' experience in environmental health,~~ may administer and enforce this Act by adopting an ordinance electing to administer and enforce this Act and adopting by reference the rules ~~and regulations~~ promulgated and amended from time to time by the Department under authority of this Act.

A unit of local government that so qualified and elects to administer and enforce this Act shall furnish the Department a copy of its ordinance and the names and qualifications of the employees required by this Act. The unit of local government ordinance shall then prevail in lieu of the state licensure ~~fee~~ and inspection program with the exception of Section 5 of this Act which provides for permits for construction or major alteration, and Sections 5.1, 5.2, 30, and 31, development and installation, which provisions shall continue to be administered by the Department. With the exception of permits as provided for in Section 5 of this Act, a unit of local

government may collect fees for administration of ordinances adopted pursuant to this Section. Units of local government shall require such State permits as provided in Section 5 prior to issuing licenses for swimming facilities constructed, ~~developed, installed,~~ or altered in a major manner in accordance with this Act ~~after the effective date of this Act.~~

Not less than once every 3 years ~~each year~~ the Department shall evaluate each unit of local government's licensing and inspection program to determine whether such program is being operated and enforced in accordance with this Act and the rules ~~and regulations~~ promulgated thereunder. If the Department finds, after investigation, that such program is not being enforced within the provisions of this Act or the rules ~~and regulations~~ promulgated thereunder, the Director shall give written notice of such findings to the unit of government. If the Department finds, not less than 30 days after ~~of~~ such given notice, that the program is not being conducted and enforced within the provisions of this Act or the rules ~~and regulations~~ promulgated thereunder, the Director shall give written notice to the unit of government that its authority to administer this Act is revoked. Any unit of government whose authority to administer this Act is revoked may request an administrative hearing as provided in this Act. If the unit of government fails to request a hearing within 15 days after receiving the notice or if, after such hearing, the Director confirms the revocation, all swimming facilities then operating under such

unit of government shall be immediately subject to the State licensure fee and inspection program, until such time as the unit of government is again authorized by the Department to administer and enforce this Act.

(Source: P.A. 92-18, eff. 6-28-01.)

(210 ILCS 125/30 new)

Sec. 30. Prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer.

(a) Any person responsible for designing, planning, and creating specifications for swimming facilities and for applying for a permit for construction or major alteration of a swimming facility must be an architect or professional engineer prequalified by the Department. A prequalified architect or prequalified professional engineer must be licensed and in good standing with the Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation and must possess public swimming facility design experience as determined by rules promulgated by the Department. Persons seeking prequalification pursuant to this Section shall apply for prequalification pursuant to rules adopted by the Department.

(b) In addition to any other power granted in this Act to adopt rules, the Department may adopt rules relating to the issuance or renewal of the prequalification of an architect or professional engineer or the suspension of the prequalification of any such person or entity, including,

without limitation, a summary suspension without a hearing founded on any one or more of the bases set forth in this subsection.

The bases for an interim or emergency suspension of the prequalification of an architect or professional engineer include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) A finding by the Department that the public interest, safety, or welfare requires a summary suspension of the prequalification without a hearing.

(2) The occurrence of an event or series of events which, in the Department's opinion, warrants a summary suspension of the prequalification without a hearing. Such events include, without limitation: (i) the indictment of the holder of the prequalification by a State or federal agency or another branch of government for a crime; (ii) the suspension of a license or prequalification by another State agency or by a federal agency or another branch of government after a hearing; (iii) failure to comply with State law, including, without limitation, this Act and the rules promulgated thereunder; and (iv) submission of fraudulent documentation or the making of false statements to the Department.

(c) If a prequalification is suspended by the Department without a hearing for any reason set forth in this Section or in Section 10-65 of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act, the Department, within 30 days after the issuance of an order

of suspension of the prequalification, shall initiate a proceeding for the suspension of or other action upon the prequalification.

(d) An applicant for prequalification under this Section must, at a minimum, be licensed in Illinois as a professional engineer or architect in accordance with the Professional Engineering Practice Act of 1989 or the Illinois Architecture Practice Act of 1989.

(210 ILCS 125/31 new)

Sec. 31. Prequalified swimming facility contractor.

(a) Any person seeking to perform construction, installation, or major alteration of a swimming facility must be prequalified by the Department. A prequalified swimming facility contractor must be registered and in good standing with the Secretary of State and possess public swimming facility construction experience as determined by rules promulgated by the Department. Persons seeking prequalification pursuant to this Section shall apply for prequalification pursuant to rules adopted by the Department.

(b) In addition to any other power granted in this Act to adopt rules, the Department may adopt rules relating to the issuance or renewal of the prequalification of a swimming facility contractor or the suspension of the prequalification of any such person or entity, including, without limitation, an interim or emergency suspension without a hearing founded on

any one or more of the bases set forth in this subsection.

The bases for an interim or emergency suspension of the prequalification of a swimming facility contractor include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) A finding by the Department that the public interest, safety, or welfare requires a summary suspension of the prequalification without a hearing.

(2) The occurrence of an event or series of events which, in the Department's opinion, warrants a summary suspension of the prequalification without a hearing. Such events include, without limitation: (i) the indictment of the holder of the prequalification by a State or federal agency or another branch of government for a crime; (ii) the suspension or modification of a license by another State agency or by a federal agency or another branch of government after a hearing; (iii) failure to comply with State law, including, without limitation, this Act and the rules promulgated thereunder; and (iv) submission of fraudulent documentation or the making of false statements to the Department.

(c) If a prequalification is suspended by the Department without a hearing for any reason set forth in this Section or in Section 10-65 of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act, the Department, within 30 days after the issuance of an order of suspension of the prequalification, shall initiate a proceeding for the suspension of or other action upon the



prequalification.

(210 ILCS 125/32 new)

Sec. 32. Service animals. It is the duty of a licensee under this Act to allow the use of service animals as defined and prescribed in 28 C.F.R. 35.104, 28 C.F.R. 35.136, 28 C.F.R. 35.139, 28 C.F.R. 36.104, 28 C.F.R. 208, and 28 C.F.R. 302(c) if the service animal has been trained to perform a specific task or work in the water and the use of such animal does not pose a direct threat to the health and safety of the patrons of the facility or the function or sanitary conditions of the facility. Any use of a licensed swimming facility by an animal other than a service animal as authorized under this Section is prohibited.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect January 1, 2013.

AN ACT concerning government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Open Meetings Act is amended by changing  
Section 2.02 as follows:

(5 ILCS 120/2.02) (from Ch. 102, par. 42.02)

Sec. 2.02. Public notice of all meetings, whether open or  
closed to the public, shall be given as follows:

(a) Every public body shall give public notice of the  
schedule of regular meetings at the beginning of each calendar  
or fiscal year and shall state the regular dates, times, and  
places of such meetings. An agenda for each regular meeting  
shall be posted at the principal office of the public body and  
at the location where the meeting is to be held at least 48  
hours in advance of the holding of the meeting. A public body  
that has a website that the full-time staff of the public body  
maintains shall also post on its website the agenda of any  
regular meetings of the governing body of that public body. Any  
agenda of a regular meeting that is posted on a public body's  
website shall remain posted on the website until the regular  
meeting is concluded. The requirement of a regular meeting  
agenda shall not preclude the consideration of items not  
specifically set forth in the agenda. Public notice of any

Any notice of a regular meeting that is posted on a public body's website shall remain posted on the website until the regular meeting is concluded. The body shall supply copies of the notice of its regular meetings, and of the notice of any special, emergency, rescheduled or reconvened meeting, to any news medium that has filed an annual request for such notice. Any such news medium shall also be given the same notice of all special, emergency, rescheduled or reconvened meetings in the same manner as is given to members of the body provided such news medium has given the public body an address or telephone number within the territorial jurisdiction of the public body at which such notice may be given. The failure of a public body to post on its website notice of any meeting or the agenda of any meeting shall not invalidate any meeting or any actions taken at a meeting.

(c) Any agenda required under this Section shall set forth the general subject matter of any resolution or ordinance that will be the subject of final action at the meeting. The public body conducting a public meeting shall ensure that at least one copy of any requested notice and agenda for the meeting is continuously available for public review during the entire 48-hour period preceding the meeting. Posting of the notice and agenda on a website that is maintained by the public body satisfies the requirement for continuous posting under this subsection (c). If a notice or agenda is not continuously available for the full 48-hour period due to actions outside of

Public Act 097-0827

HB4687 Enrolled

LRB097 16461 JDS 61625 b

the control of the public body, then that lack of availability  
does not invalidate any meeting or action taken at a meeting.

(Source: P.A. 94-28, eff. 1-1-06.)

Public Act 097-1044

HB5203 Enrolled

LRB097 18651 PJG 63885 b

AN ACT concerning elections.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Election Code is amended by changing Section 7-12 as follows:

(10 ILCS 5/7-12) (from Ch. 46, par. 7-12)

Sec. 7-12. All petitions for nomination shall be filed by mail or in person as follows:

(1) Where the nomination is to be made for a State, congressional, or judicial office, or for any office a nomination for which is made for a territorial division or district which comprises more than one county or is partly in one county and partly in another county or counties, then, except as otherwise provided in this Section, such petition for nomination shall be filed in the principal office of the State Board of Elections not more than 113 and not less than 106 days prior to the date of the primary, but, in the case of petitions for nomination to fill a vacancy by special election in the office of representative in Congress from this State, such petition for nomination shall be filed in the principal office of the State Board of Elections not more than 57 days and not less than 50 days prior to the date of the primary.

shall endorse thereon the day and hour on which each petition was filed. All petitions filed by persons waiting in line as of 8:00 a.m. on the first day for filing, or as of the normal opening hour of the office involved on such day, shall be deemed filed as of 8:00 a.m. or the normal opening hour, as the case may be. Petitions filed by mail and received after midnight of the first day for filing and in the first mail delivery or pickup of that day shall be deemed as filed as of 8:00 a.m. of that day or as of the normal opening hour of such day, as the case may be. All petitions received thereafter shall be deemed as filed in the order of actual receipt. However, 2 or more petitions filed within the last hour of the filing deadline shall be deemed filed simultaneously. Where 2 or more petitions are received simultaneously, the State Board of Elections or the various election authorities or local election officials with whom such petitions are filed shall break ties and determine the order of filing, by means of a lottery or other fair and impartial method of random selection approved by the State Board of Elections. Such lottery shall be conducted within 9 days following the last day for petition filing and shall be open to the public. Seven days written notice of the time and place of conducting such random selection shall be given by the State Board of Elections to the chairman of the State central committee of each established political party, and

AN ACT concerning elections.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Election Code is amended by changing Sections 4-50, 5-50, 6-100, 9-1.8, 9-1.9, 9-1.15, 9-2, 9-3, 9-7, 9-8.5, 9-8.6, 9-10, 9-15, 9-28.5, 16-6, 18A-5, 18A-15, 19-2.1, 19-3, 19A-15, and 24C-12 and by adding Section 1-11 as follows:

(10 ILCS 5/1-11 new)

Sec. 1-11. Public university voting. For the 2012 general election, each appropriate election authority shall, in addition to the early voting conducted at locations otherwise required by law, conduct early voting in a high traffic location on the campus of a public university within the election authority's jurisdiction. For the purposes of this Section, "public university" means the University of Illinois at its campuses in Urbana-Champaign and Springfield, Southern Illinois University at its campuses in Carbondale and Edwardsville, Eastern Illinois University, Illinois State University, Northern Illinois University, and Western Illinois University at its campuses in Macomb and Moline. The voting required by this Section to be conducted on campus must be conducted as otherwise required by Article 19A of this Code. If

registration location specifically designated for this purpose by the election authority. The election authority shall register that individual, or change a registered voter's address, in the same manner as otherwise provided by this Article for registration and change of address.

If a voter who registers or changes address during this grace period wishes to vote at the first election or primary occurring after the grace period, he or she must do so by grace period voting, either in person in the office of the election authority or at a location specifically designated for this purpose by the election authority, or by mail, at the discretion of the election authority. Grace period voting shall be in a manner substantially similar to voting under Article 19.

Within one day after a voter casts a grace period ballot, the election authority shall transmit the voter's name, street address, and precinct, ward, township, and district numbers, as the case may be, to the State Board of Elections, which shall maintain those names and that information in an electronic format on its website, arranged by county and accessible to State and local political committees. The name of each person issued a grace period ballot shall also be placed on the appropriate precinct list of persons to whom absentee and early ballots have been issued, for use as provided in Sections 17-9 and 18-5.

A person who casts a grace period ballot shall not be



If a voter who registers or changes address during this grace period wishes to vote at the first election or primary occurring after the grace period, he or she must do so by grace period voting, either in person in the office of the election authority or at a location specifically designated for this purpose by the election authority, or by mail, at the discretion of the election authority. Grace period voting shall be in a manner substantially similar to voting under Article 19.

Within one day after a voter casts a grace period ballot, the election authority shall transmit the voter's name, street address, and precinct, ward, township, and district numbers, as the case may be, to the State Board of Elections, which shall maintain those names and that information in an electronic format on its website, arranged by county and accessible to State and local political committees. The name of each person issued a grace period ballot shall also be placed on the appropriate precinct list of persons to whom absentee and early ballots have been issued, for use as provided in Sections 17-9 and 18-5.

A person who casts a grace period ballot shall not be permitted to revoke that ballot and vote another ballot with respect to that primary or election. Ballots cast by persons who register or change address during the grace period must be transmitted to and counted at the election authority's central ballot counting location and shall not be transmitted to and

purpose by the election authority, or by mail, at the discretion of the election authority. Grace period voting shall be in a manner substantially similar to voting under Article 19.

Within one day after a voter casts a grace period ballot, the election authority shall transmit the voter's name, street address, and precinct, ward, township, and district numbers, as the case may be, to the State Board of Elections, which shall maintain those names and that information in an electronic format on its website, arranged by county and accessible to State and local political committees. The name of each person issued a grace period ballot shall also be placed on the appropriate precinct list of persons to whom absentee and early ballots have been issued, for use as provided in Sections 17-9 and 18-5.

A person who casts a grace period ballot shall not be permitted to revoke that ballot and vote another ballot with respect to that primary or election. Ballots cast by persons who register or change address during the grace period must be transmitted to and counted at the election authority's central ballot counting location and shall not be transmitted to and counted at precinct polling places. The grace period ballots determined to be valid shall be added to the vote totals for the precincts for which they were cast in the order in which the ballots were opened.

(Source: P.A. 96-441, eff. 1-1-10.)

trust, partnership, committee, association, corporation, or other organization or group of persons, other than a candidate, political party, candidate political committee, or political party committee, that accepts contributions or makes expenditures during any 12-month period in an aggregate amount exceeding \$3,000 on behalf of or in opposition to a candidate or candidates for public office. "Political action committee" includes any natural person, trust, partnership, committee, association, corporation, or other organization or group of persons, other than a candidate, political party, candidate political committee, or political party committee, that makes electioneering communications during any 12-month period in an aggregate amount exceeding \$3,000 related to any candidate or candidates for public office.

(e) "Ballot initiative committee" means any natural person, trust, partnership, committee, association, corporation, or other organization or group of persons that accepts contributions or makes expenditures during any 12-month period in an aggregate amount exceeding \$3,000 in support of or in opposition to any question of public policy to be submitted to the electors. "Ballot initiative committee" includes any natural person, trust, partnership, committee, association, corporation, or other organization or group of persons that makes electioneering communications during any 12-month period in an aggregate amount exceeding \$3,000 related to any question of public policy to be submitted to the voters.

aggregate amount exceeding \$3,000 related to (i) the nomination for election, election, retention, or defeat of any public official or candidate or (ii) any question of public policy to be submitted to the voters.

(Source: P.A. 95-963, eff. 1-1-09; 96-832, eff. 1-1-11.)

(10 ILCS 5/9-1.9) (from Ch. 46, par. 9-1.9)

Sec. 9-1.9. Election cycle. "Election cycle" means any of the following:

(1) For a candidate political committee organized to support a candidate to be elected at a general primary election or general election, (i) the period beginning January 1 following the general election for the office to which a candidate seeks nomination or election and ending on the day of the general primary election for that office or (ii) the period beginning the day after a general primary election for the office to which the candidate seeks nomination or election and through December 31 following the general election.

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), for a candidate political committee organized to support a candidate for the General Assembly, (i) the period beginning January 1 following a general election and ending on the day of the next general primary election or (ii) the period beginning the day after the general primary election and ending on December 31 following a general election.

(3) For a candidate political committee organized to

election, election, retention, or defeat of a clearly identifiable public official or candidate or for or against any question of public policy to be submitted to the voters and (ii) that is not made in connection, consultation, or concert with or at the request or suggestion of the public official or candidate, the public official's or candidate's designated political committee or campaign, or the agent or agents of the public official, candidate, or political committee or campaign.

(Source: P.A. 96-832, eff. 7-1-10.)

(10 ILCS 5/9-2) (from Ch. 46, par. 9-2)

Sec. 9-2. Political committee designations.

(a) Every political committee shall be designated as a (i) candidate political committee, (ii) political party committee, (iii) political action committee, ~~or~~ (iv) ballot initiative committee, or (v) independent expenditure committee.

(b) Beginning January 1, 2011, no public official or candidate for public office may maintain or establish more than one candidate political committee for each office that public official or candidate holds or is seeking. The name of each candidate political committee shall identify the name of the public official or candidate supported by the candidate political committee. If a candidate establishes separate candidate political committees for each public office, the name of each candidate political committee shall also include the

question of public policy and whether the group supports or opposes the question.

(f) Every political committee shall designate a chairman and a treasurer. The same person may serve as both chairman and treasurer of any political committee. A candidate who administers his own campaign contributions and expenditures shall be deemed a political committee for purposes of this Article and shall designate himself as chairman, treasurer, or both chairman and treasurer of such political committee. The treasurer of a political committee shall be responsible for keeping the records and filing the statements and reports required by this Article.

(g) No contribution and no expenditure shall be accepted or made by or on behalf of a political committee at a time when there is a vacancy in the office of chairman or treasurer thereof. No expenditure shall be made for or on behalf of a political committee without the authorization of its chairman or treasurer, or their designated agents.

(h) For purposes of implementing the changes made by this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly, every political committee in existence on the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly shall make the designation required by this Section by December 31, 2010.

(Source: P.A. 96-832, eff. 7-1-10.)

funds and to cease operations until the statement of organization is filed.

For the purpose of this Section, "statewide office" means the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Secretary of State, Attorney General, State Treasurer, and State Comptroller.

(b) The statement of organization shall include:

(1) the name and address of the political committee and the designation required by Section 9-2;

(2) the scope, area of activity, party affiliation, and purposes of the political committee;

(3) the name, address, and position of each custodian of the committee's books and accounts;

(4) the name, address, and position of the committee's principal officers, including the chairman, treasurer, and officers and members of its finance committee, if any;

(5) the name and address of any sponsoring entity;

(6) a statement of what specific disposition of residual fund will be made in the event of the dissolution or termination of the committee;

(7) a listing of all banks or other financial institutions, safety deposit boxes, and any other repositories or custodians of funds used by the committee; and

(8) the amount of funds available for campaign expenditures as of the filing date of the committee's statement of organization.

for the purpose of supporting or opposing a question of public policy, (ii) all contributions and expenditures of the committee will be used for the purpose described in the statement of organization, (iii) the committee may accept unlimited contributions from any source, provided that the ballot initiative committee does not make contributions or expenditures in support of or opposition to a candidate or candidates for nomination for election, election, or retention, and (iv) failure to abide by these requirements shall deem the committee in violation of this Article.

(d-5) The statement of organization for an independent expenditure committee also shall include a verification signed by the chairperson of the committee that (i) the committee is formed for the exclusive purpose of making independent expenditures, (ii) all contributions and expenditures of the committee will be used for the purpose described in the statement of organization, (iii) the committee may accept unlimited contributions from any source, provided that the independent expenditure committee does not make contributions to any candidate political committee, political party committee, or political action committee, and (iv) failure to abide by these requirements shall deem the committee in violation of this Article.

(e) For purposes of implementing the changes made by this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly, every political committee in existence on the effective date of this amendatory



8.1, the treasurer is not required to keep a detailed and exact account of the full name and mailing address of a person who purchases tickets at the event in an amount that does not exceed \$150.

(Source: P.A. 96-832, eff. 1-1-11.)

(10 ILCS 5/9-8.5)

Sec. 9-8.5. Limitations on campaign contributions.

(a) It is unlawful for a political committee to accept contributions except as provided in this Section.

(b) During an election cycle, a candidate political committee may not accept contributions with an aggregate value over the following: (i) \$5,000 from any individual, (ii) \$10,000 from any corporation, labor organization, or association, or (iii) \$50,000 from a candidate political committee or political action committee. A candidate political committee may accept contributions in any amount from a political party committee except during an election cycle in which the candidate seeks nomination at a primary election. During an election cycle in which the candidate seeks nomination at a primary election, a candidate political committee may not accept contributions from political party committees with an aggregate value over the following: (i) \$200,000 for a candidate political committee established to support a candidate seeking nomination to statewide office, (ii) \$125,000 for a candidate political committee established

shall limit the amounts that may be transferred between a State political party committee established under subsection (a) of Section 7-8 of this Code and an affiliated federal political committee established under the Federal Election Code by the same political party. A political party committee may not accept contributions from a ballot initiative committee or from an independent expenditure committee. A political party committee established by a legislative caucus may not accept contributions from another political party committee established by a legislative caucus.

(c-5) During the period beginning on the date candidates may begin circulating petitions for a primary election and ending on the day of the primary election, a political party committee may not accept contributions with an aggregate value over \$50,000 from a candidate political committee or political party committee. A political party committee may accept contributions in any amount from a candidate political committee or political party committee if the political party committee receiving the contribution filed a statement of nonparticipation in the primary as provided in subsection (c-10). The Task Force on Campaign Finance Reform shall study and make recommendations on the provisions of this subsection to the Governor and General Assembly by September 30, 2012. This subsection becomes inoperative on July 1, 2013 and thereafter no longer applies.

(c-10) A political party committee that does not intend to

action committee or candidate political committee. A political action committee may not accept contributions from a ballot initiative committee or from an independent expenditure committee.

(e) A ballot initiative committee may accept contributions in any amount from any source, provided that the committee files the document required by Section 9-3 of this Article and files the disclosure reports required by the provisions of this Article.

(e-5) An independent expenditure committee may accept contributions in any amount from any source, provided that the committee files the document required by Section 9-3 of this Article and files the disclosure reports required by the provisions of this Article.

(f) Nothing in this Section shall prohibit a political committee from dividing the proceeds of joint fundraising efforts; provided that no political committee may receive more than the limit from any one contributor, and provided that an independent expenditure committee may not conduct joint fundraising efforts with a candidate political committee or a political party committee.

(g) On January 1 of each odd-numbered year, the State Board of Elections shall adjust the amounts of the contribution limitations established in this Section for inflation as determined by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers as issued by the United States Department of Labor and rounded

contribution limits imposed by subsection (b). For the purposes of this subsection, "immediate family" means the spouse, parent, or child of a public official or candidate.

(h-5) If a natural person or independent expenditure committee makes independent expenditures in support of or in opposition to the campaign of a particular public official or candidate in an aggregate amount of more than (i) \$250,000 for statewide office or (ii) \$100,000 for all other elective offices in an election cycle, as reported in a written disclosure filed under subsection a of Section 9-8.6 or subsection e-5) of Section 9-10 then the State Board of Elections shall, within 2 business days after the filing of the disclosure, post the disclosure on the Board's website and give official notice of the disclosure to each candidate for the same office as the public official or candidate for whose benefit the natural person or independent expenditure committee made independent expenditures. Upon receiving notice from the Board, all candidates for that office in that election, including the public official or candidate for whose benefit the natural person or independent expenditure committee made independent expenditures, shall be permitted to accept contributions in excess of any contribution limits imposed by subsection (b). The Campaign Finance Task Force shall submit a report to the Governor and General Assembly no later than February 1, 2013. The report shall examine and make recommendations regarding the provisions in this subsection

(iii) contributions made through dues, levies, or similar assessments paid by any natural person, corporation, labor organization, or association that exceed \$500 in a quarterly reporting period shall be itemized on the committee's quarterly report and may not be reported in the aggregate. A political action committee facilitating the delivery of contributions or receiving contributions shall disclose the amount of contributions made through dues delivered or received and the name of the corporation, labor organization, association, or political action committee delivering the contributions, if applicable. On January 1 of each odd-numbered year, the State Board of Elections shall adjust the amounts of the contribution limitations established in this subsection for inflation as determined by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers as issued by the United States Department of Labor and rounded to the nearest \$100. The State Board shall publish this information on its official website.

(j) A political committee that receives a contribution or transfer in violation of this Section shall dispose of the contribution or transfer by returning the contribution or transfer, or an amount equal to the contribution or transfer, to the contributor or transferor or donating the contribution or transfer, or an amount equal to the contribution or transfer, to a charity. A contribution or transfer received in violation of this Section that is not disposed of as provided in this subsection within 30 ~~45~~ days after the Board sends

not be considered an independent expenditure but rather shall be considered a contribution to the public official's or candidate's candidate political committee.

A natural person who makes an independent expenditure supporting or opposing a public official or candidate that, alone or in combination with any other independent expenditure made by that natural person supporting or opposing that public official or candidate during any 12-month period, equals an aggregate value of at least \$3,000 must file a written disclosure with the State Board of Elections within 2 business days after making any expenditure that results in the natural person meeting or exceeding the \$3,000 threshold. A natural person who has made a written disclosure with the State Board of Elections shall have a continuing obligation to report further expenditures in relation to the same election, in \$1,000 increments, to the State Board until the conclusion of that election. A natural person who makes an independent expenditure supporting or opposing a public official or candidate that, alone or in combination with any other independent expenditure made by that natural person supporting or opposing that public official or candidate during the election cycle, equals an aggregate value of more than (i) \$250,000 for statewide office or (ii) \$100,000 for all other elective offices must file a written disclosure with the State Board of Elections within 2 business days after making any expenditure that results in the natural person exceeding the

with the Board reports of campaign contributions and expenditures as required by this Section on forms to be prescribed or approved by the Board.

(b) Every political committee shall file quarterly reports of campaign contributions, expenditures, and independent expenditures. The reports shall cover the period January 1 through March 31, April 1 through June 30, July 1 through September 30, and October 1 through December 31 of each year. A political committee shall file quarterly reports no later than the 15th day of the month following each period. Reports of contributions and expenditures must be filed to cover the prescribed time periods even though no contributions or expenditures may have been received or made during the period. The Board shall assess a civil penalty not to exceed \$5,000 for failure to file a report required by this subsection. The fine, however, shall not exceed \$1,000 for a first violation if the committee files less than 10 days after the deadline. There shall be no fine if the report is mailed and postmarked at least 72 hours prior to the filing deadline. When considering the amount of the fine to be imposed, the Board shall consider whether the violation was committed inadvertently, negligently, knowingly, or intentionally and any past violations of this Section.

(c) A political committee shall file a report of any contribution of \$1,000 or more electronically with the Board within 5 business days after receipt of the contribution,

fine, the Board shall consider the following factors: (1) whether the political committee made an attempt to disclose the contribution and any attempts made to correct the violation, (2) whether the violation is attributed to a clerical or computer error, (3) the amount of the contribution, (4) whether the violation arose from a discrepancy between the date the contribution was reported transferred by a political committee and the date the contribution was received by a political committee, (5) the number of days the contribution was reported late, and (6) past violations of this Section and Section 9-3 by the political committee.

(d) For the purpose of this Section, a contribution is considered received on the date (i) a monetary contribution was deposited in a bank, financial institution, or other repository of funds for the committee, (ii) the date a committee receives notice a monetary contribution was deposited by an entity used to process financial transactions by credit card or other entity used for processing a monetary contribution that was deposited in a bank, financial institution, or other repository of funds for the committee, or (iii) the public official, candidate, or political committee receives the notification of contribution of goods or services as required under subsection (b) of Section 9-6.

(e) A political committee that makes independent expenditures of \$1,000 or more during the period 30 days or fewer before an election shall electronically file a report



(10 ILCS 5/9-15) (from Ch. 46, par. 9-15)

Sec. 9-15. It shall be the duty of the Board-

(1) to develop prescribed forms for filing statements of organization and required reports;

(2) to prepare, publish, and furnish to the appropriate persons a manual of instructions setting forth recommended uniform methods of bookkeeping and reporting under this Article;

(3) to prescribe suitable rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of this Article. Such rules and regulations shall be published and made available to the public;

(4) to send by first class mail, after the general primary election in even numbered years, to the chairman of each regularly constituted State central committee, county central committee and, in counties with a population of more than 3,000,000, to the committeemen of each township and ward organization of each political party notice of their obligations under this Article, along with a form for filing the statement of organization;

(5) to promptly make all reports and statements filed under this Article available for public inspection and copying no later than 2 business days after their receipt and to permit copying of any such report or statement at the expense of the person requesting the copy;

(6) to develop a filing, coding, and cross-indexing

defined in Section 9-1.6, who has not first complied with the registration and disclosure requirements of this Article, he or she may bring an action in the name of the People of the State of Illinois or, in the case of a State's Attorney, the People of the County, against such person or persons to restrain by preliminary or permanent injunction the making, producing, publishing, republishing, or broadcasting of such electioneering communication until the registration and disclosure requirements have been met.

(b) Any political committee that believes any person, as defined in Section 9-1.6, is making, producing, publishing, republishing, or broadcasting an electioneering communication paid for by any person, as defined in Section 9-1.6, who has not first complied with the registration and disclosure requirements of this Article may bring an action in the circuit court against such person or persons to restrain by preliminary or permanent injunction the making, producing, publishing, republishing, or broadcasting of such electioneering communication until the registration and disclosure requirements have been met.

(c) Whenever the Attorney General, or a State's Attorney with jurisdiction over any portion of the relevant electorate, believes that any person, as defined in Section 9-1.6, is engaging in independent expenditures, as defined in this Article, who has not first complied with the registration and disclosure requirements of this Article, he or she may bring an

but any variation in the size of such ballots or in the tincture of blue employed shall not affect or impair the validity thereof. Preceding each proposal to amend the constitution shall be printed the brief explanation of the amendment, prepared by the General Assembly, or in the case of a proposed amendment initiated by petition pursuant to Section 3 of Article XIV of the Constitution of the State of Illinois by the principal proponents of the amendment as approved by the Attorney General, and immediately below the explanation, the proposition shall be printed in substantially the following form:

-----  
YES                    For the proposed amendment  
----- to Article \_\_\_\_\_ (or Section  
NO                    \_\_\_\_\_ of Article \_\_\_\_\_) of  
the Constitution.

-----  
In the case of a proposition for the calling of a constitutional convention, such proposition shall be printed in substantially the following form:

-----  
YES                    For the calling  
----- of a Constitutional  
NO                    Convention.

-----  
On the back or outside of the ballot so as to appear when

convention is submitted at the same election as one or more propositions to amend the constitution, the proposition for the calling of a constitutional convention shall be printed at the top of the ballot. In such case, the back or outside of the ballot shall be printed the same as if it were a proposal solely to amend the constitution.

Where voting machines or electronic voting systems are used, the provisions of this Section may be modified as required or authorized by Article 24 or Article 24A, whichever is applicable.

(Source: P.A. 81-163.)

(10 ILCS 5/18A-5)

Sec. 18A-5. Provisional voting; general provisions.

(a) A person who claims to be a registered voter is entitled to cast a provisional ballot under the following circumstances:

(1) The person's name does not appear on the official list of eligible voters for the precinct in which the person seeks to vote. The official list is the centralized statewide voter registration list established and maintained in accordance with Section 1A-25;

(2) The person's voting status has been challenged by an election judge, a pollwatcher, or any legal voter and that challenge has been sustained by a majority of the election judges;

election judge shall inform the person of that fact, give the person the appropriate telephone number of the election authority in order to locate the polling place assigned to serve that address, and instruct the person to go to the proper polling place to vote.

(2) The person shall execute a written form provided by the election judge that shall state or contain all of the following that is available:

(i) an affidavit stating the following:

State of Illinois, County of .....,  
Township ....., Precinct ....., Ward  
....., I, ....., do solemnly  
swear (or affirm) that: I am a citizen of the United  
States; I am 18 years of age or older; I have resided  
in this State and in this precinct for 30 days  
preceding this election; I have not voted in this  
election; I am a duly registered voter in every  
respect; and I am eligible to vote in this election.  
Signature ..... Printed Name of Voter ..... Printed  
Residence Address of Voter ..... City ..... State  
.... Zip Code ..... Telephone Number ..... Date of  
Birth ..... and Illinois Driver's License Number  
..... or Last 4 digits of Social Security Number  
..... or State Identification Card Number issued to  
you by the Illinois Secretary of State.....

(ii) A box for the election judge to check one of the 6

implementing this subsection (b) (4) of this Section.

(5) The election judge shall provide the person with a provisional ballot, written instructions for casting a provisional ballot, and the provisional ballot envelope with the clear plastic packing list envelope affixed to it, which contains the person's original written affidavit and, if any, information provided by the provisional voter to support his or her claim that he or she is a duly registered voter. An election judge must also give the person written information that states that any person who casts a provisional ballot shall be able to ascertain, pursuant to guidelines established by the State Board of Elections, whether the provisional vote was counted in the official canvass of votes for that election and, if the provisional vote was not counted, the reason that the vote was not counted.

(6) After the person has completed marking his or her provisional ballot, he or she shall place the marked ballot inside of the provisional ballot envelope, close and seal the envelope, and return the envelope to an election judge, who shall then deposit the sealed provisional ballot envelope into a securable container separately identified and utilized for containing sealed provisional ballot envelopes. Ballots that are provisional because they are cast after 7:00 p.m. by court order shall be kept separate from other provisional ballots. Upon the closing of the polls, the securable container shall be sealed with filament tape provided for that purpose, which

application.

(Source: P.A. 93-574, eff. 8-21-03; 93-1071, eff. 1-18-05; 94-645, eff. 8-22-05.)

(10 ILCS 5/18A-15)

Sec. 18A-15. Validating and counting provisional ballots.

(a) The county clerk or board of election commissioners shall complete the validation and counting of provisional ballots within 14 calendar days of the day of the election. The county clerk or board of election commissioners shall have 7 calendar days from the completion of the validation and counting of provisional ballots to conduct its final canvass. The State Board of Elections shall complete within 31 calendar days of the election or sooner if all the returns are received, its final canvass of the vote for all public offices.

(b) If a county clerk or board of election commissioners determines that all of the following apply, then a provisional ballot is valid and shall be counted as a vote:

(1) The provisional voter cast the provisional ballot in the correct precinct based on the address provided by the provisional voter. The provisional voter's affidavit shall serve as a change of address request by that voter for registration purposes for the next ensuing election if it bears an address different from that in the records of the election authority;

(2) The affidavit executed by the provisional voter

one of those sources, that the provisional voter is registered and entitled to vote. The county clerk or board of election commissioners shall use any information it obtains as the basis for determining the voter registration status of the provisional voter. If a conflict exists among the information available to the county clerk or board of election commissioners as to the registration status of the provisional voter, then the county clerk or board of election commissioners shall make a determination based on the totality of the circumstances. In a case where the above information equally supports or opposes the registration status of the voter, the county clerk or board of election commissioners shall decide in favor of the provisional voter as being duly registered to vote. If the statewide voter registration database maintained by the State Board of Elections indicates that the provisional voter is registered to vote, but the county clerk's or board of election commissioners' voter registration database indicates that the provisional voter is not registered to vote, then the information found in the statewide voter registration database shall control the matter and the provisional voter shall be deemed to be registered to vote. If the records of the county clerk or board of election commissioners indicates that the provisional voter is registered to vote, but the statewide voter registration database maintained by the State Board of Elections indicates that the provisional voter is not registered to vote, then the information found in the records



apply, then the provisional ballot is not valid and may not be counted. The provisional ballot envelope containing the ballot cast by the provisional voter may not be opened. The county clerk or board of election commissioners shall write on the provisional ballot envelope the following: "Provisional ballot determined invalid.".

(f) If the county clerk or board of election commissioners determines that a provisional ballot is valid under this Section, then the provisional ballot envelope shall be opened. The outside of each provisional ballot envelope shall also be marked to identify the precinct and the date of the election.

(g) Provisional ballots determined to be valid shall be counted at the election authority's central ballot counting location and shall not be counted in precincts. The provisional ballots determined to be valid shall be added to the vote totals for the precincts from which they were cast in the order in which the ballots were opened. The validation and counting of provisional ballots shall be subject to the provisions of this Code that apply to pollwatchers. If the provisional ballots are a ballot of a punch card voting system, then the provisional ballot shall be counted in a manner consistent with Article 24A. If the provisional ballots are a ballot of optical scan or other type of approved electronic voting system, then the provisional ballots shall be counted in a manner consistent with Article 24B.

(h) As soon as the ballots have been counted, the election

box. For purposes of this Section, the term "election official" means the county clerk, a member of the board of election commissioners, as the case may be, and their respective employees.

(Source: P.A. 93-574, eff. 8-21-03; 94-645, eff. 8-22-05; 94-1000, eff. 7-3-06.)

(10 ILCS 5/19-2.1) (from Ch. 46, par. 19-2.1)

Sec. 19-2.1. At the consolidated primary, general primary, consolidated, and general elections, electors entitled to vote by absentee ballot under the provisions of Section 19-1 may vote in person at the office of the municipal clerk, if the elector is a resident of a municipality not having a board of election commissioners, or at the office of the township clerk or, in counties not under township organization, at the office of the road district clerk if the elector is not a resident of a municipality; provided, in each case that the municipal, township or road district clerk, as the case may be, is authorized to conduct in-person absentee voting pursuant to this Section. Absentee voting in such municipal and township clerk's offices under this Section shall be conducted from the 22nd day through the day before the election.

Municipal and township clerks (or road district clerks) who have regularly scheduled working hours at regularly designated offices other than a place of residence and whose offices are open for business during the same hours as the office of the

their residence. Unless specifically authorized by the election authority, municipal, township, and road district clerks shall not conduct in-person absentee voting. No less than 45 days before the date of an election, the election authority shall notify the municipal, township, and road district clerks within its jurisdiction if they are to conduct in-person absentee voting. Election authorities, however, may conduct in-person absentee voting in one or more designated appropriate public buildings from the fourth day before the election through the day before the election.

In conducting in-person absentee voting under this Section, the respective clerks shall be required to verify the signature of the absentee voter by comparison with the signature on the official registration record card. The clerk also shall reasonably ascertain the identity of such applicant, shall verify that each such applicant is a registered voter, and shall verify the precinct in which he or she is registered and the proper ballots of the political subdivisions in which the applicant resides and is entitled to vote, prior to providing any absentee ballot to such applicant. The clerk shall verify the applicant's registration and from the most recent poll list provided by the county clerk, and if the applicant is not listed on that poll list then by telephoning the office of the county clerk.

Absentee voting procedures in the office of the municipal, township and road district clerks shall be subject to all of

number of applications, absentee ballots, envelopes, and printed voting instruction slips for use by absentee voters in the offices of such clerks. The respective clerks shall receipt for all ballots received, shall return all unused or spoiled ballots to the county clerk on the day of the election and shall strictly account for all ballots received.

The ballots delivered to the respective clerks shall include absentee ballots for each precinct in the municipality, township or road district, or shall include such separate ballots for each political subdivision conducting an election of officers or a referendum on that election day as will permit any resident of the municipality, township or road district to vote absentee in the office of the proper clerk.

The clerks of all municipalities, townships and road districts may distribute applications for absentee ballot for the use of voters who wish to mail such applications to the appropriate election authority. Any person may produce, reproduce, distribute, or return to an election authority the application for absentee ballot. Upon receipt, the appropriate election authority shall accept and promptly process any application for absentee ballot.

(Source: P.A. 96-1008, eff. 7-6-10.)

(10 ILCS 5/19-3) (from Ch. 46, par. 19-3)

Sec. 19-3. The application for absentee ballot shall be substantially in the following form:

29-10 of The Election Code, the undersigned certifies that the statements set forth in this application are true and correct.

....

\*fill in either (1), (2) or (3).

Post office address to which ballot is mailed:

.....

However, if application is made for a primary election ballot, such application shall require the applicant to designate the name of the political party with which the applicant is affiliated.

Any person may produce, reproduce, distribute, or return to an election authority the application for absentee ballot. Upon receipt, the appropriate election authority shall accept and promptly process any application for absentee ballot submitted in a form substantially similar to that required by this Section, including any substantially similar production or reproduction generated by the applicant.

(Source: P.A. 95-440, eff. 8-27-07; 96-312, eff. 1-1-10; 96-553, eff. 8-17-09; 96-1000, eff. 7-2-10; 96-1008, eff. 7-6-10.)

(10 ILCS 5/19A-15)

Sec. 19A-15. Period for early voting; hours.

(a) The period for early voting by personal appearance begins the 15th ~~22nd~~ day preceding a general primary, consolidated primary, consolidated, or general election and

Ballots. In an election jurisdiction where a Direct Recording Electronic Voting System is used, the following procedures for counting and tallying the ballots shall apply:

Before the opening of the polls, the judges of elections shall assemble the voting equipment and devices and turn the equipment on. The judges shall, if necessary, take steps to activate the voting devices and counting equipment by inserting into the equipment and voting devices appropriate data cards containing passwords and data codes that will select the proper ballot formats selected for that polling place and that will prevent inadvertent or unauthorized activation of the poll-opening function. Before voting begins and before ballots are entered into the voting devices, the judges of election shall cause to be printed a record of the following: the election's identification data, the device's unit identification, the ballot's format identification, the contents of each active candidate register by office and of each active public question register showing that they contain all zero votes, all ballot fields that can be used to invoke special voting options, and other information needed to ensure the readiness of the equipment and to accommodate administrative reporting requirements. The judges must also check to be sure that the totals are all zeros in the counting columns and in the public counter affixed to the voting devices.

After the judges have determined that a person is qualified

deposited by the voter into a secure ballot box. No permanent paper record shall be removed from the polling place except by election officials as authorized by this Article. All permanent paper records shall be preserved and secured by election officials in the same manner as paper ballots and shall be available as an official record for any recount, redundant count, or verification or retabulation of the vote count conducted with respect to any election in which the voting system is used. The voter shall exit the voting station and the voting system shall prevent any further attempt to vote until it has been properly re-activated. If a voting device has been enabled for voting but the voter leaves the polling place without casting a ballot, 2 judges of election, one from each of the 2 major political parties, shall spoil the ballot.

Throughout the election day and before the closing of the polls, no person may check any vote totals for any candidate or public question on the voting or counting equipment. Such equipment shall be programmed so that no person may reset the equipment for reentry of ballots unless provided the proper code from an authorized representative of the election authority.

The precinct judges of election shall check the public register to determine whether the number of ballots counted by the voting equipment agrees with the number of voters voting as shown by the applications for ballot. If the same do not agree, the judges of election shall immediately contact the offices of

fractional cumulative votes have been tabulated.

If instructed by the election authority, the judges of election shall cause the tabulated returns to be transmitted electronically to the offices of the election authority via modem or other electronic medium.

The precinct judges of election shall select a bi-partisan team of 2 judges, who shall immediately return the ballots in a sealed container, along with all other election materials and equipment as instructed by the election authority; provided, however, that such container must first be sealed by the election judges with filament tape or other approved sealing devices provided for the purpose in a manner that the ballots cannot be removed from the container without breaking the seal or filament tape and disturbing any signatures affixed by the election judges to the container. The election authority shall keep the office of the election authority, or any receiving stations designated by the authority, open for at least 12 consecutive hours after the polls close or until the ballots and election material and equipment from all precincts within the jurisdiction of the election authority have been returned to the election authority. Ballots and election materials and equipment returned to the office of the election authority which are not signed and sealed as required by law shall not be accepted by the election authority until the judges returning the ballots make and sign the necessary corrections. Upon acceptance of the ballots and election materials and equipment



1 HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION  
2 CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT

3 RESOLVED, BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE  
4 NINETY-SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THE  
5 SENATE CONCURRING HEREIN, that there shall be submitted to the  
6 electors of the State for adoption or rejection at the general  
7 election next occurring at least 6 months after the adoption of  
8 this resolution a proposition to amend Article XIII of the  
9 Illinois Constitution by adding Section 5.1 as follows:

10 ARTICLE XIII  
11 GENERAL PROVISIONS

12 (ILCON Art. XIII, Sec. 5.1 new)

13 SECTION 5.1. PENSION AND RETIREMENT BENEFIT INCREASES

14 (a) No bill, except a bill for appropriations, that  
15 provides a benefit increase under any pension or retirement  
16 system of the State, any unit of local government or school  
17 district, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, shall  
18 become law without the concurrence of three-fifths of the  
19 members elected to each house of the General Assembly. If the  
20 Governor vetoes such a bill by returning it with objections to  
21 the house in which it originated, the provisions of Article IV,  
22 Section 9 shall govern the passage of that bill except that  
23 such bill shall not become law unless, upon its return, it is

1 passed by a record vote of two-thirds of the members elected to  
2 each house of the General Assembly. If the Governor returns  
3 such a bill with specific recommendations for change to the  
4 house in which it originated, the provisions of Article IV,  
5 Section 9 shall govern the acceptance of those specific  
6 recommendations except that such recommendations may be  
7 accepted only by a record vote of two-thirds of the members  
8 elected to each house of the General Assembly, regardless of  
9 the bill's date of passage or effective date.

10 For purposes of this subsection, the term "benefit  
11 increase" means a change to any pension or other law that  
12 results in a member of a pension or retirement system receiving  
13 a new benefit or an enhancement to a benefit, including, but  
14 not limited to, any changes that (i) increase the amount of the  
15 pension or annuity that a member could receive upon retirement,  
16 or (ii) reduce or eliminate the eligibility requirements or  
17 other terms or conditions a member must meet to receive a  
18 pension or annuity upon retirement. The term "benefit increase"  
19 also means a change to any pension or other law that expands  
20 the class of persons who may become a member of any pension or  
21 retirement system or who may receive a pension or annuity from  
22 a pension or retirement system. An increase in salary or wage  
23 level, by itself, shall not constitute a "benefit increase"  
24 unless that increase exceeds limitations provided by law.

25 (b) No ordinance, resolution, rule, or other action of the  
26 governing body, or an appointee or employee of the governing

1 body, of any unit of local government or school district that  
2 provides an emolument increase to an official or employee that  
3 has the effect of increasing the amount of the pension or  
4 annuity that an official or employee could receive as a member  
5 of a pension or retirement system shall be valid without the  
6 concurrence of three-fifths of the members of that governing  
7 body. For purposes of this subsection, the term "emolument  
8 increase" means the creation of a new or enhancement of an  
9 existing advantage, profit or gain that an official or employee  
10 receives by virtue of holding office or employment, including,  
11 but not limited to, compensated time off, bonuses, incentives,  
12 or other forms of compensation. An increase in salary or wage  
13 level, by itself, shall not constitute an "emolument increase"  
14 unless that increase exceeds limitations provided by law.

15 (c) No action of the governing body, or an appointee or  
16 employee of the governing body, of any pension or retirement  
17 system created or maintained for the benefit of officers or  
18 employees of the State, any unit of local government or school  
19 district, or any agency or instrumentality thereof that results  
20 in a beneficial determination shall be valid without the  
21 concurrence of three-fifths of the members of that governing  
22 body. For the purposes of this subsection, the term "beneficial  
23 determination" means an interpretation or application of  
24 pension or other law by the governing body, or an appointee or  
25 employee of the governing body, that reverses or supersedes a  
26 previous interpretation or application and either (i) results

1 in an increase in the amount of the pension or annuity received  
2 by a member of the pension or retirement system or (ii) results  
3 in a person becoming eligible to receive a pension or annuity  
4 from the pension or retirement system. The term "beneficial  
5 determination" shall not include a beneficial determination  
6 mandated by a final decision of a court of competent  
7 jurisdiction.

8 (d) Nothing in this Section shall prevent the passage or  
9 adoption of any law, ordinance, resolution, rule, policy, or  
10 practice that further restricts the ability to provide a  
11 "benefit increase", "emolument increase", or "beneficial  
12 determination" as those terms are used under this Section.

13 SCHEDULE

14 This Constitutional Amendment takes effect on January 9,  
15 2013.

HJ0093

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

## 1 HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION

2 WHEREAS, The 97th General Assembly of the State of Illinois  
3 has submitted House Joint Resolution Constitutional Amendment  
4 49, a proposal to amend the Illinois Constitution, to the  
5 voters of Illinois at the November 2012 general election; and

6 WHEREAS, The Illinois Constitutional Amendment Act  
7 requires the General Assembly to prepare a brief explanation of  
8 the proposed amendment, a brief argument in favor of the  
9 amendment, a brief argument against the amendment, and the form  
10 in which the amendment will appear on the ballot, and also  
11 requires the information to be published and distributed to the  
12 electorate; therefore, be it

13 RESOLVED, BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE  
14 NINETY-SEVENTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THE  
15 SENATE CONCURRING HEREIN, that the proposed form of new Section  
16 5.1 of Article XIII shall be published as follows:

17 "ARTICLE XIII  
18 GENERAL PROVISIONS

19 (ILCON Art. XIII, Sec. 5.1 new)

HJ0093

- 2 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 SECTION 5.1. PENSION AND RETIREMENT BENEFIT INCREASES

2 (a) No bill, except a bill for appropriations, that  
3 provides a benefit increase under any pension or retirement  
4

5 system of the State, any unit of local government or school  
6 district, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, shall  
7 become law without the concurrence of three-fifths of the  
8 members elected to each house of the General Assembly. If the  
9 Governor vetoes such a bill by returning it with objections to  
10 the house in which it originated, the provisions of Article IV,  
11 Section 9 shall govern the passage of that bill except that  
12 such bill shall not become law unless, upon its return, it is  
13 passed by a record vote of two-thirds of the members elected to  
14 each house of the General Assembly. If the Governor returns  
15 such a bill with specific recommendations for change to the  
16 house in which it originated, the provisions of Article IV,  
17 Section 9 shall govern the acceptance of those specific  
18 recommendations except that such recommendations may be  
19 accepted only by a record vote of two-thirds of the members  
20 elected to each house of the General Assembly, regardless of  
21 the bill's date of passage or effective date.

22 For purposes of this subsection, the term "benefit  
23 increase" means a change to any pension or other law that  
24 results in a member of a pension or retirement system receiving  
25 a new benefit or an enhancement to a benefit, including, but  
not limited to, any changes that (i) increase the amount of the

HJR0093

- 3 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 pension or annuity that a member could receive upon retirement,  
2 or (ii) reduce or eliminate the eligibility requirements or  
3 other terms or conditions a member must meet to receive a  
4 pension or annuity upon retirement. The term "benefit increase"  
5 also means a change to any pension or other law that expands  
6 the class of persons who may become a member of any pension or  
7 retirement system or who may receive a pension or annuity from  
8 a pension or retirement system. An increase in salary or wage  
9 level, by itself, shall not constitute a "benefit increase"  
10 unless that increase exceeds limitations provided by law.

11 (b) No ordinance, resolution, rule, or other action of the  
12 governing body, or an appointee or employee of the governing  
13

14 body, of any unit of local government or school district that  
15 provides an emolument increase to an official or employee that  
16 has the effect of increasing the amount of the pension or  
17 annuity that an official or employee could receive as a member  
18 of a pension or retirement system shall be valid without the  
19 concurrence of three-fifths of the members of that governing  
20 body. For purposes of this subsection, the term "emolument  
21 increase" means the creation of a new or enhancement of an  
22 existing advantage, profit or gain that an official or employee  
23 receives by virtue of holding office or employment, including,  
24 but not limited to, compensated time off, bonuses, incentives,  
25 or other forms of compensation. An increase in salary or wage  
26 level, by itself, shall not constitute an "emolument increase"  
unless that increase exceeds limitations provided by law.

HJ0093

- 4 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 (c) No action of the governing body, or an appointee or  
2 employee of the governing body, of any pension or retirement  
3 system created or maintained for the benefit of officers or  
4 employees of the State, any unit of local government or school  
5 district, or any agency or instrumentality thereof that results  
6 in a beneficial determination shall be valid without the  
7 concurrence of three-fifths of the members of that governing  
8 body. For the purposes of this subsection, the term "beneficial  
9 determination" means an interpretation or application of  
10 pension or other law by the governing body, or an appointee or  
11 employee of the governing body, that reverses or supersedes a  
12 previous interpretation or application and either (i) results  
13 in an increase in the amount of the pension or annuity received  
14 by a member of the pension or retirement system or (ii) results  
15 in a person becoming eligible to receive a pension or annuity  
16 from the pension or retirement system. The term "beneficial  
17 determination" shall not include a beneficial determination  
18 mandated by a final decision of a court of competent  
19 jurisdiction.

20 (d) Nothing in this Section shall prevent the passage or  
21

22 adoption of any law, ordinance, resolution, rule, policy, or  
23 practice that further restricts the ability to provide a  
24 "benefit increase", "emolument increase", or "beneficial  
25 determination" as those terms are used under this Section."  
and be it further

HJ0093

- 5 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 RESOLVED, That a brief explanation of the proposed  
2 amendment, a brief argument in favor of the amendment, a brief  
3 argument against the amendment, and the form in which the  
4 amendment will appear on the ballot shall be published and  
5 distributed as follows:

HJ0093

- 6 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 PROPOSED AMENDMENT  
2 TO ADD SECTION 5.1 TO ARTICLE XIII  
3 OF THE ILLINOIS CONSTITUTION

4 That will be submitted to the voters  
5 November 6, 2012

6 This pamphlet includes

7 EXPLANATION OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT  
8 ARGUMENTS IN FAVOR OF THE AMENDMENT  
9 ARGUMENTS AGAINST THE AMENDMENT  
10 FORM OF BALLOT



HJ0093

- 7 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1       *To the Electors of the State of Illinois:*

2       The purpose of a state constitution is to establish a  
3       structure for government and laws. The Illinois Constitution:  
4       provides citizens with rights and protections; creates the  
5       executive, judicial, and legislative branches of government;  
6       clarifies the powers given to local governments; limits the  
7       taxing power of the State; and imposes certain restrictions on  
8       the use of taxpayer dollars. There are three ways to initiate  
9       change to the Illinois Constitution: (1) a constitutional  
10      convention may propose changes to any part; (2) the General  
11      Assembly may propose changes to any part; or (3) the people of  
12      the State by referendum may propose changes to the Legislative  
13      Article. Regardless of the method of initiating change, the  
14      people of Illinois must approve any changes of the Constitution  
15      before they become effective.

16      The proposed amendment adds Section 5.1 to the General  
17      Provisions Article of the Illinois Constitution. The new  
18      section would require a three-fifths majority vote to approve  
19      any pension or retirement benefit increase for public employees  
20      and officials. At the general election to be held on November  
21      6, 2012, you will be called upon to decide whether the proposed  
22      amendment should become part of the Illinois Constitution.

23                                   EXPLANATION

HJ0093

- 8 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1       The proposed amendment adds a section to the Illinois  
2       Constitution requiring a three-fifths majority vote to approve  
3       any pension or retirement benefit increase for public employees  
4       and officials.

5       The proposed amendment requires a three-fifths vote of each  
6       chamber of the General Assembly (the Senate and the House of  
7       Representatives) for a bill that provides a pension benefit

8 increase, except for appropriation bills. "Benefit increase"  
9 means a change to any pension or other law that results in a  
10 member of a pension or retirement system receiving a new  
11 benefit or an enhancement, including any changes that (i)  
12 increase the amount of a member's pension, or (ii) reduce or  
13 eliminate the eligibility requirements or other terms or  
14 conditions a member must meet to receive a pension. It also  
15 means a change to any pension or other law that expands the  
16 class of persons who may become members of any pension or  
17 retirement system. An increase in salary or wage level, by  
18 itself, does not constitute a "benefit increase," unless the  
19 increase exceeds limitations provided by law.

20 The proposed amendment would also require a two-thirds vote  
21 for lawmakers to override a governor's veto or accept a  
22 governor's proposed changes in a rewrite of pension increase  
23 legislation. Currently, it takes a three-fifths vote to  
24 override a veto and only a simple majority to accept a  
25 governor's changes.

26 The proposed amendment requires approval of three-fifths

HJ0093

- 9 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 of the members of the governing body of a unit of local  
2 government or school district for any ordinance, resolution,  
3 rule, or other action that provides an enhancement or emolument  
4 increase to an employee or officer that has the effect of  
5 increasing the pension of that employee or officer. "Emolument  
6 increase" means the creation of a new, or enhancement of an  
7 existing, advantage, profit, or gain that an official or  
8 employee receives by virtue of holding office or employment,  
9 which includes compensated time off, bonuses, incentives, or  
10 other forms of compensation. An increase in salary or wage  
11 level, by itself, does not constitute an "emolument increase,"  
12 unless the increase exceeds limitations provided by law.

13 The proposed amendment requires approval of three-fifths  
14 of the members of the governing body of a pension or retirement  
15 system for any action that results in a "beneficial  
16

determination." A "beneficial determination" is an  
17 interpretation or application of law that reverses or  
18 supersedes a previous decision if that interpretation or  
19 application (i) results in an increase in the overall amount of  
20 pension benefits received by a member or (ii) results in a  
21 person becoming eligible to receive a pension. "Beneficial  
22 determination" does not include a final decision mandated by  
23 the courts.

24 Voters that believe the Illinois Constitution should be  
25 amended to require a three-fifths majority vote to approve any  
26 pension or retirement benefit increase for public employees and

HJ0093

- 10 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 officials should vote "YES" on the question. Three-fifths of  
2 those voting on the question, or a majority of those voting in  
3 the election, must vote "YES" in order for the amendment to  
4 become effective. Voters that believe the Illinois  
5 Constitution should not be amended to require a three-fifths  
6 majority vote to approve any pension or retirement benefit  
7 increase for public employees and officials should vote "NO" on  
8 the question.

9 Arguments in Favor of the Proposed Amendment

10 (1) A higher vote requirement would help prevent unfunded  
11 future liability for pension benefits.

12 (2) Requiring a three-fifths vote would provide better  
13 accountability.

14 (3) A three-fifths vote requires greater consensus among  
15 parties.

16 **Unfunded Liability**

17 Currently, the public retirement system is not financially  
18 stable and is significantly underfunded. A higher vote  
19 requirement to enact pension benefit increases will help to  
20 maintain fiscal responsibility and make it more difficult to

21 further burden the public retirement system.

HJ0093

- 11 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 **Provide More Accountability**

2 The proposed amendment provides more accountability in the  
3 legislative process by requiring more votes to pass a pension  
4 benefit increase. Since the cost of benefit increases comes at  
5 a later date, the price to the taxpayers is not always noticed  
6 immediately. A higher vote requirement will signify to the  
7 governing body that they are taking a serious action and will  
8 encourage greater in-depth thought before passage.

9 **Greater Consensus**

10 A three-fifths vote requirement means the members of the  
11 governing body, regardless of political affiliation, will need  
12 to work together to reach an agreement. A greater consensus  
13 would provide for better decisions and more serious  
14 deliberation. Given the importance of pension benefit  
15 increases, and their subsequent impact on taxpayers, greater  
16 agreement would be beneficial.

17 **Arguments Against the Proposed Amendment**

18 (1) A higher vote requirement may limit the bargaining  
19 power of employers and employees.

20 (2) There is the possibility of disagreement on what

HJ0093

- 12 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 constitutes a benefit increase.

2 (3) Requiring a supermajority for pension benefit  
3 increases could make it more difficult to recruit the best  
4 people to work in government service.

5     **Decreased Bargaining Power**

6             Many government employees are represented by labor unions  
7     that bargain on their behalf for particular benefits. This  
8     constitutional amendment may make it more difficult for unions  
9     to bargain for certain increased benefits for their employees.  
10    In addition, many government employers may prefer to bargain  
11    over these benefits to give incentives to employees to do their  
12    jobs well. This constitutional amendment could remove  
13    bargaining power from both the government employer and  
14    government employee.

15    **Possibility of Disagreement on Terms**

16            The proposed amendment creates new definitions for the  
17    terms "benefit increase," "emolument increase," and  
18    "beneficial determination," which are not defined in other  
19    statutes or in existing case law. These definitions could  
20    generate litigation, resulting in additional costs. There may  
21    also be disagreement amongst the governing body on whether a  
22    bill, resolution, or other action constitutes a "benefit

HJ0093

- 13 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1     increase," "emolument increase," or "beneficial  
2     determination."

3     **Recruiting Employees for Government Jobs**

4            Like any employer, units of government wish to attract good  
5     employees. This constitutional amendment may make it more  
6     difficult for employers to increase benefits to employees and,  
7     therefore, make it harder to attract the best people to  
8     government service.

9                                    **FORM OF BALLOT**

10                    Proposed Amendment to the 1970 Illinois Constitution  
11                                    Explanation of Amendment

12 Upon approval by the voters, the proposed amendment, which  
 13 takes effect on January 9, 2013, adds a new section to the  
 14 General Provisions Article of the Illinois Constitution. The  
 15 new section would require a three-fifths majority vote of each  
 16 chamber of the General Assembly, or the governing body of a  
 17 unit of local government, school district, or pension or  
 18 retirement system, in order to increase a benefit under any  
 19 public pension or retirement system. At the general election to  
 20 be held on November 6, 2012, you will be called upon to decide  
 21 whether the proposed amendment should become part of the

HJ0093

- 14 -

LRB097 21820 JWD 70454 r

1 Illinois Constitution.

2 If you believe the Illinois Constitution should be amended to  
 3 require a three-fifths majority vote in order to increase a  
 4 benefit under any public pension or retirement system, you  
 5 should vote "YES" on the question. If you believe the Illinois  
 6 Constitution should not be amended to require a three-fifths  
 7 majority vote in order to increase a benefit under any public  
 8 pension or retirement system, you should vote "NO" on the  
 9 question. Three-fifths of those voting on the question or a  
 10 majority of those voting in the election must vote "YES" in  
 11 order for the amendment to become effective on January 9, 2013.

12 -----  
 13 YES For the proposed addition -  
 14 ----- of Section 5.1 to Article XIII  
 15 NO of the Illinois Constitution.  
 16 -----

Public Act 097-0933

HB4622 Enrolled

LRB097 16031 JDS 61183 b

AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Illinois Pension Code is amended by changing Sections 7-170, 7-171, 7-172, 7-172.2, 7-173, 7-220, 15-113, 15-135, 15-136, 15-136.4, 15-139, and 15-153.2 as follows:

(40 ILCS 5/7-170) (from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 7-170)

Sec. 7-170. Federal Social Security coverage.

(a) It is declared to be the policy and purpose to extend to covered employees as defined in Section 7-138, the benefits of the Federal Old Age and Survivors Insurance System as authorized by the Federal Social Security Act and amendments thereto. To effect this, the board shall take such action as may be required by applicable State and Federal laws or regulations.

(b) The board shall execute an agreement with the State Agency to secure coverage of covered employees as provided in paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Each participating municipality and each participating instrumentality shall remit payment of contributions for Social Security purposes on behalf of covered employees and covered municipalities and participating instrumentalities as required by applicable State and federal laws and regulations.

(d) Contributions of covered employees ~~to this fund~~ for Federal Social Security purposes shall be paid in such amounts and at such time as required by applicable State and federal laws and regulations.

(e) (Blank).

(f) The board shall maintain such records and submit such reports as may be required by applicable State and Federal laws or regulations.

(Source: P.A. 96-1084, eff. 7-16-10.)

(40 ILCS 5/7-171) (from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 7-171)

Sec. 7-171. Finance; taxes.

(a) Each municipality other than a school district shall appropriate an amount sufficient to provide for the current municipality contributions required by Section 7-172 of this Article, for the fiscal year for which the appropriation is made and all amounts due for municipal contributions for previous years. Those municipalities which have been assessed an annual amount to amortize its unfunded obligation, as provided in subparagraph 4 of paragraph (a) of Section 7-172 of this Article, shall include in the appropriation an amount sufficient to pay the amount assessed. The appropriation shall be based upon an estimate of assets available for municipality contributions and liabilities therefor for the fiscal year for which appropriations are to be made, including funds available from levies for this purpose in prior years.



AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Illinois Pension Code is amended by changing Section 2-108.1 and by adding Sections 1-166 and 2-126.2 as follows:

(40 ILCS 5/1-166 new)

Sec. 1-166. Proportional annuity liability.

(a) If a participant's final average salary in a participating system under the Retirement Systems Reciprocal Act, other than the General Assembly Retirement System, is used to calculate a proportional retirement annuity for that participant under the General Assembly Retirement System, if that final average salary is higher than the highest salary for annuity purposes of that person under the General Assembly Retirement System, and if the participant retires after the effective date of this Section with less than 2 years of service that has accrued in that participating system since his or her last day of active participation in the General Assembly Retirement System, then the increased cost of the proportional annuity paid by the General Assembly Retirement System that is attributable to that higher level of compensation shall be paid by the employer of the participant under that other

participating system to the General Assembly Retirement System in the form of a lump sum payment determined by the General Assembly Retirement System in accordance with its annuity tables and other actuarial assumptions.

(b) For the purposes of this Section, "final average salary in a participating system under the Retirement Systems Reciprocal Act, other than the General Assembly Retirement System," includes:

(1) In Section 1-160 and Articles 16 and 18, "final average salary".

(2) In Articles 7 and 15, "final rate of earnings".

(3) In Articles 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12, "highest average annual salary for any 4 consecutive years within the last 10 years of service immediately preceding the date of withdrawal".

(4) In Article 13, "average final salary".

(5) In Article 14, "final average compensation".

(6) In Article 17, "average salary".

(7) In Section 22-207, "wages or salary received by him at the date of retirement or discharge".

(c) If an employer fails to pay the amount required under this Section to the General Assembly Retirement System for more than 90 days after the payment is due, the System, after giving notice to the employer, may certify to the State Comptroller the amount of the delinquent payment and the Comptroller shall deduct the amount so certified or any part thereof from any

payment of State funds to the employer and shall pay the amount so deducted to the System. If State funds from which such deductions may be made are not available, then the System may proceed against the employer to recover the amount of the delinquent payment in the appropriate circuit court.

(40 ILCS 5/2-108.1) (from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 2-108.1)

Sec. 2-108.1. Highest salary for annuity purposes.

(a) "Highest salary for annuity purposes" means whichever of the following is applicable to the participant:

For a participant who first becomes a participant of this System before August 10, 2009 (the effective date of Public Act 96-207):

(1) For a participant who is a member of the General Assembly on his or her last day of service: the highest salary that is prescribed by law, on the participant's last day of service, for a member of the General Assembly who is not an officer; plus, if the participant was elected or appointed to serve as an officer of the General Assembly for 2 or more years and has made contributions as required under subsection (d) of Section 2-126, the highest additional amount of compensation prescribed by law, at the time of the participant's service as an officer, for members of the General Assembly who serve in that office.

(2) For a participant who holds one of the State executive offices specified in Section 2-105 on his or her

Public Act 097-0964

HB5212 Enrolled

LRB097 19755 JLS 65018 b

AN ACT concerning wages.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Prevailing Wage Act is amended by changing  
Section 4 as follows:

(820 ILCS 130/4) (from Ch. 48, par. 39s-4) .

Sec. 4. Ascertaining prevailing wage.

(a) The public body awarding any contract for public work or otherwise undertaking any public works, shall ascertain the general prevailing rate of hourly wages in the locality in which the work is to be performed, for each craft or type of worker or mechanic needed to execute the contract, and where the public body performs the work without letting a contract therefor, shall ascertain the prevailing rate of wages on a per hour basis in the locality, and such public body shall specify in the resolution or ordinance and in the call for bids for the contract, that the general prevailing rate of wages in the locality for each craft or type of worker or mechanic needed to execute the contract or perform such work, also the general prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work, as ascertained by the public body or by the Department of Labor shall be paid for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the contract or to perform such work, and it shall be

(c) A public body or other entity shall also require in all contractor's and subcontractor's bonds that the contractor or subcontractor include such provision as will guarantee the faithful performance of such prevailing wage clause as provided by contract or other written instrument. All bid specifications shall list the specified rates to all laborers, workers and mechanics in the locality for each craft or type of worker or mechanic needed to execute the contract.

(d) If the Department of Labor revises the prevailing rate of hourly wages to be paid by the public body or other entity, the revised rate shall apply to such contract, and the public body or other entity shall be responsible to notify the contractor and each subcontractor, of the revised rate.

The public body or other entity shall discharge its duty to notify of the revised rates by inserting a written stipulation in all contracts or other written instruments that states the prevailing rate of wages are revised by the Department of Labor and are available on the Department's official website. This shall be deemed to be proper notification of any rate changes under this subsection.

(e) Two or more investigatory hearings under this Section on the issue of establishing a new prevailing wage classification for a particular craft or type of worker shall be consolidated in a single hearing before the Department. Such consolidation shall occur whether each separate investigatory hearing is conducted by a public body or the Department. The

AN ACT concerning employment.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Right to Privacy in the Workplace Act is amended by changing Section 10 as follows:

(820 ILCS 55/10) (from Ch. 48, par. 2860)

Sec. 10. Prohibited inquiries.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any employer to inquire, in a written application or in any other manner, of any prospective employee or of the prospective employee's previous employers, whether that prospective employee has ever filed a claim for benefits under the Workers' Compensation Act or Workers' Occupational Diseases Act or received benefits under these Acts.

(b) (1) It shall be unlawful for any employer to request or require any employee or prospective employee to provide any password or other related account information in order to gain access to the employee's or prospective employee's account or profile on a social networking website or to demand access in any manner to an employee's or prospective employee's account or profile on a social networking website.

(2) Nothing in this subsection shall limit an employer's right to:

(A) promulgate and maintain lawful workplace policies governing the use of the employer's electronic equipment, including policies regarding Internet use, social networking site use, and electronic mail use; and

(B) monitor usage of the employer's electronic equipment and the employer's electronic mail without requesting or requiring any employee or prospective employee to provide any password or other related account information in order to gain access to the employee's or prospective employee's account or profile on a social networking website.

(3) Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit an employer from obtaining about a prospective employee or an employee information that is in the public domain or that is otherwise obtained in compliance with this amendatory Act of the 97th General Assembly.

(4) For the purposes of this subsection, "social networking website" means an Internet-based service that allows individuals to:

(A) construct a public or semi-public profile within a bounded system, created by the service;

(B) create a list of other users with whom they share a connection within the system; and

(C) view and navigate their list of connections and those made by others within the system.

"Social networking website" shall not include electronic mail. (Source: P.A. 87-807.)

AN ACT concerning civil law.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Income Withholding for Support Act is amended by changing Sections 20, 35, and 45 as follows:

(750 ILCS 28/20)

Sec. 20. Entry of order for support containing income withholding provisions; income withholding notice.

(a) In addition to any content required under other laws, every order for support entered on or after July 1, 1997, shall:

(1) Require an income withholding notice to be prepared and served immediately upon any payor of the obligor by the obligee or public office, unless a written agreement is reached between and signed by both parties providing for an alternative arrangement, approved and entered into the record by the court, which ensures payment of support. In that case, the order for support shall provide that an income withholding notice is to be prepared and served only if the obligor becomes delinquent in paying the order for support; and

(2) Contain a dollar amount to be paid until payment in full of any delinquency that accrues after entry of the



order for support. The amount for payment of delinquency shall not be less than 20% of the total of the current support amount and the amount to be paid periodically for payment of any arrearage stated in the order for support; and

(3) Include the obligor's Social Security Number, which the obligor shall disclose to the court. If the obligor is not a United States citizen, the obligor shall disclose to the court, and the court shall include in the order for support, the obligor's alien registration number, passport number, and home country's social security or national health number, if applicable.

(b) At the time the order for support is entered, the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall provide a copy of the order to the obligor and shall make copies available to the obligee and public office.

(c) The income withholding notice shall:

(1) be in the standard format prescribed by the federal Department of Health and Human Services; and

(1.1) state the date of entry of the order for support upon which the income withholding notice is based; and

(2) direct any payor to withhold the dollar amount required for current support under the order for support; and

(3) direct any payor to withhold the dollar amount required to be paid periodically under the order for

support for payment of the amount of any arrearage stated in the order for support; and

(4) direct any payor or labor union or trade union to enroll a child as a beneficiary of a health insurance plan and withhold or cause to be withheld, if applicable, any required premiums; and

(5) state the amount of the payor income withholding fee specified under this Section; and

(6) state that the amount actually withheld from the obligor's income for support and other purposes, including the payor withholding fee specified under this Section, may not be in excess of the maximum amount permitted under the federal Consumer Credit Protection Act; and

(7) in bold face type, the size of which equals the largest type on the notice, state the duties of the payor and the fines and penalties for failure to withhold and pay over income and for discharging, disciplining, refusing to hire, or otherwise penalizing the obligor because of the duty to withhold and pay over income under this Section; and

(8) state the rights, remedies, and duties of the obligor under this Section; and

(9) include the Social Security number of the obligor; and

(10) include the date that withholding for current support terminates, which shall be the date of termination

of the current support obligation set forth in the order for support; and

(11) contain the signature of the obligee or the printed name and telephone number of the authorized representative of the public office, except that the failure to contain the signature of the obligee or the printed name and telephone number of the authorized representative of the public office shall not affect the validity of the income withholding notice; and

(12) direct any payor to pay over amounts withheld for payment of support to the State Disbursement Unit.

(d) The accrual of a delinquency as a condition for service of an income withholding notice, under the exception to immediate withholding in subsection (a) of this Section, shall apply only to the initial service of an income withholding notice on a payor of the obligor.

(e) Notwithstanding the exception to immediate withholding contained in subsection (a) of this Section, if the court finds at the time of any hearing that an arrearage has accrued, the court shall order immediate service of an income withholding notice upon the payor.

(f) If the order for support, under the exception to immediate withholding contained in subsection (a) of this Section, provides that an income withholding notice is to be prepared and served only if the obligor becomes delinquent in paying the order for support, the obligor may execute a written

waiver of that condition and request immediate service on the payor.

(g) The obligee or public office may serve the income withholding notice on the payor or its superintendent, manager, or other agent by ordinary mail or certified mail return receipt requested, by facsimile transmission or other electronic means, by personal delivery, or by any method provided by law for service of a summons. At the time of service on the payor and as notice that withholding has commenced, the obligee or public office shall serve a copy of the income withholding notice on the obligor by ordinary mail addressed to his or her last known address. A copy of an income withholding notice and proof of service shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court only when necessary in connection with a petition to contest, modify, suspend, terminate, or correct an income withholding notice, an action to enforce income withholding against a payor, or the resolution of other disputes involving an income withholding notice. The changes made to this subsection by this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly apply on and after September 1, 2009.

(h) At any time after the initial service of an income withholding notice, any other payor of the obligor may be served with the same income withholding notice without further notice to the obligor. A copy of the income withholding notice together with a proof of service on the other payor shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court.

(i) New service of an income withholding notice is not required in order to resume withholding of income in the case of an obligor with respect to whom an income withholding notice was previously served on the payor if withholding of income was terminated because of an interruption in the obligor's employment of less than 180 days.

(Source: P.A. 96-858, eff. 1-8-10.)

(750 ILCS 28/35)

Sec. 35. Duties of payor.

(a) It shall be the duty of any payor who has been served with an income withholding notice to deduct and pay over income as provided in this Section. The payor shall deduct the amount designated in the income withholding notice, as supplemented by any notice provided pursuant to subsection (f) of Section 45, beginning no later than the next payment of income which is payable or creditable to the obligor that occurs 14 days following the date the income withholding notice was mailed, sent by facsimile or other electronic means, or placed for personal delivery to or service on the payor. The payor may combine all amounts withheld for the benefit of an obligee or public office into a single payment and transmit the payment with a listing of obligors from whom withholding has been effected. The payor shall pay the amount withheld to the State Disbursement Unit within 7 business days after the date the amount would (but for the duty to withhold income) have been

paid or credited to the obligor. If the payor knowingly fails to withhold the amount designated in the income withholding notice or to pay any amount withheld to the State Disbursement Unit within 7 business days after the date the amount would have been paid or credited to the obligor, then the payor shall pay a penalty of \$100 for each day that the amount designated in the income withholding notice (whether or not withheld by the payor) is not paid to the State Disbursement Unit after the period of 7 business days has expired. The total penalty for a payor's failure, on one occasion, to withhold or pay to the State Disbursement Unit an amount designated in the income withholding notice may not exceed \$10,000. The failure of a payor, on more than one occasion, to pay amounts withheld to the State Disbursement Unit within 7 business days after the date the amount would have been paid or credited to the obligor creates a presumption that the payor knowingly failed to pay over the amounts. This penalty may be collected in a civil action which may be brought against the payor in favor of the obligee or public office. An action to collect the penalty may not be brought more than one year after the date of the payor's alleged failure to withhold or pay income. A finding of a payor's nonperformance within the time required under this Act must be documented by a certified mail return receipt or a sheriff's or private process server's proof of service showing the date the income withholding notice was served on the payor. For purposes of this Act, a withheld amount shall be considered

paid by a payor on the date it is mailed by the payor, or on the date an electronic funds transfer of the amount has been initiated by the payor, or on the date delivery of the amount has been initiated by the payor. For each deduction, the payor shall provide the State Disbursement Unit, at the time of transmittal, with the date the amount would (but for the duty to withhold income) have been paid or credited to the obligor.

After June 30, 2000, every payor that has 250 or more employees shall use electronic funds transfer to pay all amounts withheld under this Section. During the year 2001 and during each year thereafter, every payor that has fewer than 250 employees and that withheld income under this Section pursuant to 10 or more income withholding notices during December of the preceding year shall use electronic funds transfer to pay all amounts withheld under this Section.

Upon receipt of an income withholding notice requiring that a minor child be named as a beneficiary of a health insurance plan available through an employer or labor union or trade union, the employer or labor union or trade union shall immediately enroll the minor child as a beneficiary in the health insurance plan designated by the income withholding notice. The employer shall withhold any required premiums and pay over any amounts so withheld and any additional amounts the employer pays to the insurance carrier in a timely manner. The employer or labor union or trade union shall mail to the obligee, within 15 days of enrollment or upon request, notice

of the date of coverage, information on the dependent coverage plan, and all forms necessary to obtain reimbursement for covered health expenses, such as would be made available to a new employee. When an order for dependent coverage is in effect and the insurance coverage is terminated or changed for any reason, the employer or labor union or trade union shall notify the obligee within 10 days of the termination or change date along with notice of conversion privileges.

For withholding of income, the payor shall be entitled to receive a fee not to exceed \$5 per month to be taken from the income to be paid to the obligor.

(b) Whenever the obligor is no longer receiving income from the payor, the payor shall return a copy of the income withholding notice to the obligee or public office and shall provide information for the purpose of enforcing this Act.

(c) Withholding of income under this Act shall be made without regard to any prior or subsequent garnishments, attachments, wage assignments, or any other claims of creditors. Withholding of income under this Act shall not be in excess of the maximum amounts permitted under the federal Consumer Credit Protection Act. Income available for withholding shall be applied first to the current support obligation, then to any premium required for employer, labor union, or trade union-related health insurance coverage ordered under the order for support, and then to payments required on past-due support obligations. If there is



insufficient available income remaining to pay the full amount of the required health insurance premium after withholding of income for the current support obligation, then the remaining available income shall be applied to payments required on past-due support obligations. If the payor has been served with more than one income withholding notice pertaining to the same obligor, the payor shall allocate income available for withholding on a proportionate share basis, giving priority to current support payments. A payor who complies with an income withholding notice that is regular on its face shall not be subject to civil liability with respect to any individual, any agency, or any creditor of the obligor for conduct in compliance with the notice.

(d) No payor shall discharge, discipline, refuse to hire or otherwise penalize any obligor because of the duty to withhold income.

(Source: P.A. 96-53, eff. 1-1-10.)

(750 ILCS 28/45)

Sec. 45. Additional duties.

(a) An obligee who is receiving income withholding payments under this Act shall notify the State Disbursement Unit and the Clerk of the Circuit Court of any change of address within 7 days of such change.

(b) An obligee who is a recipient of public aid shall send a copy of any income withholding notice served by the obligee

to the Division of Child Support Enforcement of the Department of Healthcare and Family Services.

(c) Each obligor shall notify the obligee, the public office, and the Clerk of the Circuit Court of any change of address within 7 days.

(d) An obligor whose income is being withheld pursuant to this Act shall notify the obligee, the public office, and the Clerk of the Circuit Court of any new payor, within 7 days.

(e) (Blank.)

(f) The obligee or public office shall provide notice to the payor and Clerk of the Circuit Court of any other support payment made, including but not limited to, a set-off under federal and State law or partial payment of the delinquency or arrearage, or both.

(g) The State Disbursement Unit shall maintain complete, accurate, and clear records of all income withholding payments and their disbursements. Certified copies of payment records maintained by the State Disbursement Unit, a public office, or the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall, without further proof, be admitted into evidence in any legal proceedings under this Act.

(h) The Department of Healthcare and Family Services shall design suggested legal forms for proceeding under this Act and shall make available to the courts such forms and informational materials which describe the procedures and remedies set forth herein for distribution to all parties in support actions.

(i) At the time of transmitting each support payment, the

State Disbursement Unit shall provide the obligee or public office, as appropriate, with any information furnished by the payor as to the date the amount would (but for the duty to withhold income) have been paid or credited to the obligor.

(j) If an obligee who is receiving income withholding payments under this Act does not receive a payment required under the income withholding notice, he or she must give written notice of the non-receipt to the payor. The notice must include the date on which the obligee believes the payment was to have been made and the amount of the payment. The obligee must send the notice to the payor by certified mail, return receipt requested.

After receiving a written notice of non-receipt of payment under this subsection, a payor must, within 14 days thereafter, either (i) notify the obligee of the reason for the non-receipt of payment or (ii) make the required payment, together with interest at the rate of 9% calculated from the date on which the payment of income should have been made. A payor who fails to comply with this subsection is subject to the \$100 per day penalty provided under subsection (a) of Section 35 of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 95-331, eff. 8-21-07.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

Public Act 097-0903

SB2847 Enrolled

LRB097 16760 AEK 61938 b

AN ACT concerning employment.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Equal Pay Act of 2003 is amended by adding  
Section 27 as follows:

(820 ILCS 112/27 new)

Sec. 27. Officers and agents. In addition to an individual  
who is deemed to be an employer pursuant to Section 5 of this  
Act, any officers of a corporation or agents of an employer who  
willfully and knowingly permit such employer to evade a final  
judgment or final award provided under this Act shall be deemed  
to be the employers of the employees.

AN ACT concerning local government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Governmental Account Audit Act is amended by changing Sections 3 and 4 as follows:

(50 ILCS 310/3) (from Ch. 85, par. 703)

Sec. 3. Any governmental unit receiving revenue of less than \$850,000 for any fiscal year shall, in lieu of complying with the requirements of Section 2 for audits and audit reports, file with the Comptroller a financial report containing information required by the Comptroller. In addition, a governmental unit receiving revenue of less than \$850,000 may file with the Comptroller any audit reports which may have been prepared under any other law. Any governmental unit receiving revenue of \$850,000 or more for any fiscal year shall, in addition to complying with the requirements of Section 2 for audits and audit reports, file with the Comptroller the financial report required by this Section. Such financial reports shall be on forms so designed by the Comptroller as not to require professional accounting services for its preparation. All reports to be filed with the Comptroller under this Section must be submitted electronically and the Comptroller must post the reports on the

Internet no later than 45 days after they are received. If the governmental unit provides the Comptroller's Office with sufficient evidence that the report cannot be filed electronically, the Comptroller may waive this requirement. The Comptroller must also post a list of municipalities that are not in compliance with the reporting requirements set forth in this Section.

(Source: P.A. 92-582, eff. 7-1-02.)

(50 ILCS 310/4) (from Ch. 85, par. 704)

Sec. 4. Overdue report.

(a) If the required report for a governmental unit is not filed with the Comptroller in accordance with Section 2 or Section 3, whichever is applicable, within 6 months after the close of the fiscal year of the governmental unit, the Comptroller shall notify the governing body of that unit in writing that the report is due and may also grant a 60 day extension for the filing of the audit report. If the required report is not filed within the time specified in such written notice, the Comptroller shall cause an audit to be made by a licensed public accountant, and the governmental unit shall pay to the Comptroller actual compensation and expenses to reimburse him for the cost of preparing or completing such report.

(b) The Comptroller may decline to order an audit and the preparation of an audit report (i) if an initial examination of

the books and records of the governmental unit indicates that the books and records of the governmental unit are inadequate or unavailable due to the passage of time or the occurrence of a natural disaster or (ii) if the Comptroller determines that the cost of an audit would impose an unreasonable financial burden on the governmental unit.

(c) The State Comptroller may grant extensions for delinquent reports. The Comptroller may charge a governmental unit a fee for a delinquent audit of \$5 per day for the first 15 days past due, \$10 per day for 16 through 30 days past due, \$15 per day for 31 through 45 days past due, and \$20 per day for the 46th day and every day thereafter. All fees collected under this subsection (c) shall be deposited into the Comptroller's Administrative Fund.

(Source: P.A. 92-191, eff. 8-1-01.)

Section 10. The Counties Code is amended by changing Sections 6-31003 and 6-31004 as follows:

(55 ILCS 5/6-31003) (from Ch. 34, par. 6-31003)

Sec. 6-31003. Annual audits and reports. ~~The in counties having a population of over 10,000 but less than 500,000, the~~ county board of each county shall cause an audit of all of the funds and accounts of the county to be made annually by an accountant or accountants chosen by the county board or by an accountant or accountants retained by the Comptroller, as

AN ACT concerning regulation.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Child Care Act of 1969 is amended by adding  
Section 5.8 as follows:

(225 ILCS 10/5.8 new)

Sec. 5.8. Radon testing of licensed day care centers,  
licensed day care homes, and licensed group day care homes.

(a) Effective January 1, 2013, licensed day care centers,  
licensed day care homes, and licensed group day care homes  
shall have the facility tested for radon at least once every 3  
years pursuant to rules established by the Illinois Emergency  
Management Agency.

(b) Effective January 1, 2014, as part of an initial  
application or application for renewal of a license for day  
care centers, day care homes, and group day care homes, the  
Department shall require proof the facility has been tested  
within the last 3 years for radon pursuant to rules established  
by the Illinois Emergency Management Agency.

(c) The report of the most current radon measurement shall  
be posted in the facility next to the license issued by the  
Department. Copies of the report shall be provided to parents  
or guardians upon request.



(d) Included with the report referenced in subsection (c) shall be the following statement:

"Every parent or guardian is notified that this facility has performed radon measurements to ensure the health and safety of the occupants. The Illinois Emergency Management Agency (IEMA) recommends that all residential homes be tested and that corrective actions be taken at levels equal to or greater than 4.0 pCi/L. Radon is a Class A human carcinogen, the leading cause of lung cancer in non-smokers, and the second leading cause of lung cancer overall. For additional information about this facility contact the licensee and for additional information regarding radon contact the IEMA Radon Program at 800-325-1245 or on the Internet at [www.radon.illinois.gov](http://www.radon.illinois.gov)."

Section 10. The Illinois Radon Awareness Act is amended by changing Section 10 as follows:

(420 ILCS 46/10)

Sec. 10. Radon testing and disclosure.

(a) Except as excluded by Section 20 of this Act, the seller shall provide to the buyer of any interest in residential real property the IEMA pamphlet entitled "Radon Testing Guidelines for Real Estate Transactions" (or an equivalent pamphlet approved for use by IEMA) and the Illinois

Public Act 097-0698

SB3258 Enrolled

LRB097 15082 RLC 60175 b

AN ACT concerning criminal law.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Criminal Identification Act is amended by  
changing Section 5.2 as follows:

(20 ILCS 2630/5.2)

Sec. 5.2. Expungement and sealing.

(a) General Provisions.

(1) Definitions. In this Act, words and phrases have  
the meanings set forth in this subsection, except when a  
particular context clearly requires a different meaning.

(A) The following terms shall have the meanings  
ascribed to them in the Unified Code of Corrections,  
730 ILCS 5/5-1-2 through 5/5-1-22:

- (i) Business Offense (730 ILCS 5/5-1-2),
- (ii) Charge (730 ILCS 5/5-1-3),
- (iii) Court (730 ILCS 5/5-1-6),
- (iv) Defendant (730 ILCS 5/5-1-7),
- (v) Felony (730 ILCS 5/5-1-9),
- (vi) Imprisonment (730 ILCS 5/5-1-10),
- (vii) Judgment (730 ILCS 5/5-1-12),
- (viii) Misdemeanor (730 ILCS 5/5-1-14),
- (ix) Offense (730 ILCS 5/5-1-15),

(ii) Standing, sitting idly, whether or not the person is in a vehicle, or remaining in or around school or public park property, for the purpose of committing or attempting to commit a sex offense.

(iii) Entering or remaining in a building in or around school property, other than the offender's residence.

(12) "Part day child care facility" has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.10 of the Child Care Act of 1969.

(13) "Playground" means a piece of land owned or controlled by a unit of local government that is designated by the unit of local government for use solely or primarily for children's recreation.

(14) "Public park" includes a park, forest preserve, bikeway, trail, or conservation area under the jurisdiction of the State or a unit of local government.

(15) "School" means a public or private preschool or elementary or secondary school.

(16) "School official" means the principal, a teacher, or any other certified employee of the school, the superintendent of schools or a member of the school board.

(e) For the purposes of this Section, the 500 feet distance shall be measured from: (1) the edge of the property of the school building or the real property comprising the school that is closest to the edge of the property of the child sex

Public Act 097-0895

SB2958 Enrolled

LRB097 19675 HLH 64930 b

AN ACT concerning State government.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Department of Central Management Services Law of the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois is amended by changing Sections 405-105 and 405-411 as follows:

(20 ILCS 405/405-105) (was 20 ILCS 405/64.1)

Sec. 405-105. Fidelity, surety, property, and casualty insurance. The Department shall establish and implement a program to coordinate the handling of all fidelity, surety, property, and casualty insurance exposures of the State and the departments, divisions, agencies, branches, and universities of the State. In performing this responsibility, the Department shall have the power and duty to do the following:

(1) Develop and maintain loss and exposure data on all State property.

(2) Study the feasibility of establishing a self-insurance plan for State property and prepare estimates of the costs of reinsurance for risks beyond the realistic limits of the self-insurance.

(3) Prepare a plan for centralizing the purchase of property and casualty insurance on State property under a master policy or policies and purchase the insurance

officer may declare the contract void if it determines that voiding the contract is in the best interests of the State.

(e) If, during the term of a contract, the chief procurement officer learns from an annual certification or otherwise determines that a subcontractor subject to Section 20-120 no longer qualifies to enter into State contracts by reason of Section 50-5, 50-10, 50-10.5, 50-11, 50-12, 50-14, or 50-14.5 of this Article, the chief procurement officer may declare the related contract void if it determines that voiding the contract is in the best interests of the State. However, the related contract shall not be declared void unless the contractor refuses to terminate the subcontract upon the State's request after a finding that the subcontractor no longer qualifies to enter into State contracts by reason of one of the Sections listed in this subsection.

(f) The changes to this Section made by Public Act 96-795 apply to actions taken by the chief procurement officer on or after July 1, 2010.

(Source: P.A. 96-493, eff. 1-1-10; 96-795, eff. 7-1-10 (see Section 5 of P.A. 96-793 for the effective date of changes made by P.A. 96-795); 96-1000, eff. 7-2-10.)

Section 20. The Governmental Joint Purchasing Act is amended by changing Sections 2, 3, 4, and 4.2 as follows:

(30 ILCS 525/2) (from Ch. 85, par. 1602)

Sec. 2. Joint purchasing authority.

(a) Any governmental unit may purchase personal property, supplies and services jointly with one or more other governmental units. All such joint purchases shall be by competitive solicitation bids as provided in Section 4 of this Act. The provisions of any other acts under which a governmental unit operates which refer to purchases and procedures in connection therewith shall be superseded by the provisions of this Act when the governmental units are exercising the joint powers created by this Act.

(a-5) A chief procurement officer established in Section 10-20 of the Illinois Procurement Code ~~The Department of Central Management Services~~ may authorize the purchase of personal property, supplies, and services jointly with a governmental entity of this or another state or with a consortium of governmental entities of one or more other states. Subject to provisions of the joint purchasing solicitation, the appropriate chief procurement officer ~~Department of Central Management Services~~ may designate the resulting contract as available to governmental units in Illinois.

(b) Any not-for-profit agency that qualifies under Section 45-35 of the Illinois Procurement Code and that either (1) acts pursuant to a board established by or controlled by a unit of local government or (2) receives grant funds from the State or from a unit of local government, shall be eligible to

participate in contracts established by the State.

(Source: P.A. 96-584, eff. 1-1-10.)

(30 ILCS 525/3) (from Ch. 85, par. 1603)

Sec. 3. Conduct of competitive selection ~~bid-letting~~. Under any agreement of governmental units that desire to make joint purchases pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 2, one of the governmental units shall conduct the competitive selection process ~~letting-of bids~~. Where the State of Illinois is a party to the joint purchase agreement, the appropriate chief procurement officer ~~Department of Central Management Services~~ shall conduct or authorize the competitive selection process ~~letting-of bids~~. Expenses of such competitive selection process ~~bid-letting~~ may be shared by the participating governmental units in proportion to the amount of personal property, supplies or services each unit purchases.

When the State of Illinois is a party to the joint purchase agreement pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 2, the acceptance of responses to the competitive selection process ~~bids~~ shall be in accordance with the Illinois Procurement Code and rules promulgated under that Code. When the State of Illinois is not a party to the joint purchase agreement, the acceptance of responses to the competitive selection process ~~bids~~ shall be governed by the agreement.

When the State of Illinois is a party to a joint purchase agreement pursuant to subsection (a-5) of Section 2, the State

may act as the lead state or as a participant state. When the State of Illinois is the lead state, all such joint purchases shall be conducted in accordance with the Illinois Procurement Code. When Illinois is a participant state, all such joint purchases shall be conducted in accordance with the procurement laws of the lead state; provided that all such joint procurements must be by competitive solicitation process ~~sealed-bid~~. All resulting awards shall be published in the appropriate volume of the Illinois Procurement Bulletin as may be required by Illinois law governing publication of the solicitation, protest, and award of Illinois State contracts. Contracts resulting from a joint purchase shall contain all provisions required by Illinois law and rule.

The personal property, supplies or services involved shall be distributed or rendered directly to each governmental unit taking part in the purchase. The person selling the personal property, supplies or services may bill each governmental unit separately for its proportionate share of the cost of the personal property, supplies or services purchased.

The credit or liability of each governmental unit shall remain separate and distinct. Disputes between bidders and governmental units shall be resolved between the immediate parties.

(Source: P.A. 96-584, eff. 1-1-10.)

(30 ILCS 525/4) (from Ch. 85, par. 1604)



Sec. 4. Bids and proposals. The purchases of all personal property, supplies and services under this Act shall be based on competitive solicitations , ~~sealed bids~~. For purchases pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 2, bids and proposals shall be solicited by public notice inserted at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in one of the counties where the materials are to be used and at least 5 calendar days before the final date of submitting bids or proposals. Where the State of Illinois is a party to the joint purchase agreement, public notice soliciting the bids shall be published ~~inserted~~ in the appropriate volume of the Illinois Procurement Bulletin. Such notice shall include a general description of the personal property, supplies or services to be purchased and shall state where all blanks and specifications may be obtained and the time and place for the opening of bids and proposals. The governmental unit conducting the competitive selection process ~~bid-letting~~ may also solicit sealed bids or proposals by sending requests by mail to prospective suppliers and by posting notices on a public bulletin board in its office.

All purchases, orders or contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder or highest-ranked proposer, taking into consideration the qualities of the articles or services supplied, their conformity with the specifications, their suitability to the requirements of the participating governmental units and the delivery terms.

Where the State of Illinois is not a party, all bids or

Public Act 097-0895

SB2958 Enrolled

LRB097 19675 HLH 64930 b

proposals may be rejected and new bids or proposals solicited if one or more of the participating governmental units believes the public interest may be served thereby. Each bid or proposal, with the name of the bidder or proposer, shall be entered on a record, which record with the successful bid or proposal indicated thereon shall, after the award of the purchase or order or contract, be open to public inspection. A copy of all contracts shall be filed with the purchasing office agent or clerk or secretary of each participating governmental unit.

(Source: P.A. 96-584, eff. 1-1-10.)

(30 ILCS 525/4.2) (from Ch. 85, par. 1604.2)

Sec. 4.2. Any governmental unit may, without violating any bidding requirement otherwise applicable to it, procure personal property, supplies and services under any contract let by the State pursuant to lawful procurement procedures. Purchases made by the State of Illinois must be approved or authorized by the appropriate chief procurement officer.

(Source: P.A. 87-960.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

AN ACT concerning revenue.

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,  
represented in the General Assembly:**

Section 5. The Property Tax Code is amended by changing Sections 18-190 and 18-205 as follows:

(35 ILCS 200/18-190)

Sec. 18-190. Direct referendum; new rate or increased limiting rate.

(a) If a new rate is authorized by statute to be imposed without referendum or is subject to a backdoor referendum, as defined in Section 28-2 of the Election Code, the governing body of the affected taxing district before levying the new rate shall submit the new rate to direct referendum under the provisions of this Section and of Article 28 of the Election Code. Notwithstanding the provisions, requirements, or limitations of any other law, any tax levied for the 2005 levy year and all subsequent levy years by any taxing district subject to this Law may be extended at a rate exceeding the rate established for that tax by referendum or statute, provided that the rate does not exceed the statutory ceiling above which the tax is not authorized to be further increased either by referendum or in any other manner. Notwithstanding the provisions, requirements, or limitations of any other law,

limiting rate will be applicable. The additional tax shown for each levy year shall be the approximate dollar amount of the increase over the amount of the most recently completed extension at the time the submission of the proposition is initiated by the taxing district. The approximate amount of the additional taxes extendable shown in paragraphs (2) and (3) shall be calculated by multiplying \$100,000 (the fair market value of the property without regard to any property tax exemptions) by (i) the percentage level of assessment prescribed for that property by statute, or by ordinance of the county board in counties that classify property for purposes of taxation in accordance with Section 4 of Article IX of the Illinois Constitution; (ii) the most recent final equalization factor certified to the county clerk by the Department of Revenue at the time the taxing district initiates the submission of the proposition to the electors; and (iii) either the new rate or the amount by which the limiting rate is to be increased. This amendatory Act of the 97th General Assembly is intended to clarify the existing requirements of this Section, and shall not be construed to validate any prior non-compliant referendum language. (i) without regard to any property tax exemptions and (ii) based upon the percentage level of assessment prescribed for such property by statute or by ordinance of the county board in counties which classify property for purposes of taxation in accordance with Section 4 of Article IX of the Constitution. Paragraph (4) shall be

residence and having a fair market value at the time of the referendum of \$100,000 is estimated to be \$....

(2) Based upon an average annual percentage increase (or decrease) in the market value of such property of ...% (insert percentage equal to the average annual percentage increase or decrease for the prior 3 levy years, at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district, in the amount of (A) the equalized assessed value of the taxable property in the taxing district less (B) the new property included in the equalized assessed value), the approximate amount of the additional tax extendable against such property for the ... levy year is estimated to be \$... and for the ... levy year is estimated to be \$....

Paragraph (2) shall be included only if the increased extension limitation will be applicable for more than one year and shall list each levy year for which the increased extension limitation will be applicable. The additional tax shown for each levy year shall be the approximate dollar amount of the increase over the amount of the most recently completed extension at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district. The approximate amount of the additional tax extendable shown in paragraphs (1) and (2) shall be calculated by multiplying \$100,000 (the fair market value of the property without regard to any property tax exemptions) by (i) the percentage level of assessment prescribed for that

property by statute, or by ordinance of the county board in counties that classify property for purposes of taxation in accordance with Section 4 of Article IX of the Illinois Constitution; (ii) the most recent final equalization factor certified to the county clerk by the Department of Revenue at the time the taxing district initiates the submission of the proposition to the electors; (iii) the last known aggregate extension base of the taxing district at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district; and (iv) the difference between the percentage increase proposed in the question and the lesser of 5% or the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for the prior levy year (or an estimate of the percentage increase for the prior levy year if the increase is unavailable at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district); and dividing the result by the last known equalized assessed value of the taxing district at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district. This amendatory Act of the 97th General Assembly is intended to clarify the existing requirements of this Section, and shall not be construed to validate any prior non-compliant referendum language. using (A) the lesser of 5% or the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for the prior levy year (or an estimate of the percentage increase for the prior levy year if the increase is unavailable at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district), (B) the

~~percentage increase proposed in the question, and (C) the last known equalized assessed value and aggregate extension base of the taxing district at the time the submission of the question is initiated by the taxing district. The approximate amount of the tax extendable shall be calculated (i) without regard to any property tax exemptions and (ii) based upon the percentage level of assessment prescribed for such property by statute or by ordinance of the county board in counties which classify property for purposes of taxation in accordance with Section 4 of Article IX of the Constitution.~~ Any notice required to be published in connection with the submission of the question shall also contain this supplemental information and shall not contain any other supplemental information. Any error, miscalculation, or inaccuracy in computing any amount set forth on the ballot or in the notice that is not deliberate shall not invalidate or affect the validity of any proposition approved. Notice of the referendum shall be published and posted as otherwise required by law, and the submission of the question shall be initiated as provided by law.

(Source: P.A. 94-976, eff. 6-30-06.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law.

**ROBERT K. BUSH**

**ROBERT K. BUSH** received his J.D. Degree in 1977 from the Boston University School of Law. He received his Bachelor's Degree from the College of William & Mary in 1974 and also attended Wesleyan University in Middletown, Connecticut. Since May, 2005, Mr. Bush has been named by Chicago Magazine as one of the top attorneys in the State of Illinois representing cities, municipalities and other local governments. He is a member of the Bar of both the State of Illinois and the State of Indiana. Mr. Bush has significant experience representing numerous Illinois public entities, both in a corporate and litigation setting. He presently serves as Village Attorney for the Village of Harwood Heights and the Village of Lisle and he serves as Park District Counsel to the Cary Park District, the Hoffman Estates Park District, the Downers Grove Park District and the Salt Creek Park District, among others. Mr. Bush works closely with the many self-insured pools represented by Ancel Glink and is the corporate counsel for the School Employees Loss Fund, the Municipal Self-Insurance Cooperative Agency, the Northern Illinois Health Insurance Program, the McHenry County School Insurance Pool and the North Suburban Benefit Cooperative.

Mr. Bush has lectured before the Self-Insurers Institute of America, the American Bar Association, the Chicago Bar Association, the Illinois Association of Park Districts, the Illinois Park District Association, the International Association of School Business Officials, the Public Risk Management Association, the National Business Institute, as well as having participated in seminars before a number of municipal organizations. Mr. Bush is co-author of the *Illinois Park District Law Manual* and has published articles on diverse public law topics in several state and national publications. Mr. Bush has authored the chapter on "Workers' Compensation Practice" in the Chicago Bar Association - Young Lawyer's Section Handbook from 1983 to the present and has written several articles in the area of worker's compensation practice including "Mystery of Worker's Compensation" published in the Illinois Municipal Review and "Compensation Rates for Volunteer Municipal Employees" - the Illinois Bar Journal. Mr. Bush has also penned an article entitled "Civility In Municipal Government: Keeping Order When Factions Fracture Your Meetings" - Illinois Municipal Review. In addition to handling cases at the trial level and State and Federal Courts, he has appeared before the Illinois Appellate Court and the Illinois Supreme Court, as well as other administrative agencies. Mr. Bush is a member of the American Bar Association, the Chicago Bar Association, the International Municipality Lawyers Association and in 1984 was awarded the "Lawyer in the Classroom" Award by the Constitutional Rights Foundation. In 2008, Mr. Bush accepted on behalf of himself and the firm a "Lifetime Appreciation" award given by the Illinois Association of Park Districts in recognition of their steadfast counsel, commitment and generosity in helping make Illinois a better place through parks, recreation and conservation.